
 
 

North Liberty 
City Council 

 
August 9, 2016 
Regular Session 

 



 

 
 

City Administrator Memo 
 



City Council Memo 
for August 9, 2016 
from the desk of Ryan C. Heiar 

 

Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
rheiar@northlibertyiowa.org • office (319) 626-5700 • fax (319) 626-3288 • cell (319) 541-8404 

published August 5, 2016 •page 1 
 

Meetings & Events 

Tuesday, Aug 9 at 6:00p.m. 

City Council Work Session 
& Meeting  

Monday, Aug 15 at 7:00p.m. 

Library Board 

Tuesday, Aug 23 at 6:30p.m. 

City Council  

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and included in your 
packet: 

 City Council Minutes (08/01/16) 
 Claims 
 Change Order #6, North Liberty Road/Dubuque Street Project,  

Streb Construction Co. Inc., $3,585.75 
 Pay Application #6, North Liberty Road/Dubuque Street Project,  

Streb Construction Co. Inc., $312,987.61 
 Final Pay Application, Penn Meadows Paving Project, Midwest  

Construction Inc., $13,902.75 
 Change Order #7, Wastewater Treatment Plant Phase II Project,  

Tricon Construction, $9,069.92  
 Pay Application #11, Wastewater Treatment Plant Phase II  

Project, Tricon Construction, $1,245,081.77  
 Change Order #5, Penn Street ICAAP Improvements, Metro  

Pavers, $14,405.73 
 Change Order #6, Penn Street ICAAP Improvements, Metro  

Pavers, $0 
 Pay Application #5, Penn Street ICAAP Improvements, Metro  

Pavers, $402,149.58 
 Pay Application #2, Penn Meadows Park Splash Pad Project,  

Calacci Construction, $50,687.50 
 
Note:  Change Order #6 for the Penn Street ICAAP Project does not 
change the cost of the project.   In order to pay the material invoice 
amount for stored materials (the traffic signal equipment and poles), the 
DOT requires that a new line item be added by change order.  The amount 
will eventually reduce down to zero as each of these items is 
installed.  There is no overall cost change for the traffic signal system. 

 



published August 5, 2016 •page 2 
 

Roseberry Stop Final Plat & Site Plan 
This is a request from Francis and Christine Lenane to approve a final plat and site plan for multi-family 
property located on the west side of South Front Street, just north of Creekside Commons condominiums. 
The entire site is zoned RM-8 PAD, multi-family, but only Lot 1 is proposed for development at this time. 
Muddy Creek bisects the larger Lenane property north to south, and the creek and timber are immediately 
west of the proposed condominiums. Visually, this site will lay out much like the Creekside Commons 
development to the south. The buildings are an attractive row-house design with generous windows, 
roofline changes, offsets, masonry, and porches, and will be an asset in the area. Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinance requirements are met and the Planning Commission and staff recommend approval.   

Alphagraphics Site Plan 
This request is to approve a site plan for commercial warehouse development on Kennel Court, Lot 1 
North Park subdivision. The development is at the northwest corner of Kennel Court and 240th Street. The 
site layout is straightforward, with a large L-shaped industrial metal building and a small parking area. The 
landscaping plan, building design, and overall layout meet basic requirements for development. The 
Planning Commission and staff recommended approval of the site plan with the requirement that 
additional landscaping be added along the 240th Street frontage. 

Shive Hattery Services Agreement, Streets/Water Facility  
The Street Department has been discussing and planning for a brine production and storage building for 
several years (it’s been included in the CIP since FY 15).  This building and associated equipment will allow 
for the production of salt brine, which can be used as a pretreatment and in combination with sand and 
salt on roads to help with snow and ice removal.   

As the planning and design process of the new water plant has progressed, it’s been challenging to 
accommodate the storage and maintenance space needs of the water department within the new plant.  
Additionally, the SRF program was not willing to fund a separate storage and maintenance facility.   

The FY 18 (next fiscal year) CIP includes the construction of a joint facility, a Brine Production and Water 
Equipment and Maintenance Facility that will help mitigate the operational space needs of the Water and 
Street Departments, funded with cash on hand within the water and streets budgets.  The total project 
cost is estimated at just over $1 million.  Staff would like to begin design soon so that bids can be secured 
early next year and construction can begin early in FY 18.  Staff is recommending approval of a design 
contract with Shive Hattery in the amount of $133,000.  Interim Street Superintendent Dan Lange and 
Water Superintendent Greg Metternich will be at the meeting to address questions. 

SRF Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement 
The construction of the new nano-filtration water plant is being funded with State Revolving Loan Fund 
(SRF) monies. Tuesday’s agenda includes a public hearing and loan and disbursement agreement with the 
SRF program in an amount not-to-exceed $23 million. Once this project is completed (anticipated Fall 



published August 5, 2016 •page 3 
 

2018) and all payments have been made to the contractor, we will close on the loan and finalize the 
amortization schedule.  This SRF loan is scheduled to be repaid with water utility revenues. 

Water System Improvements Project, Phase 1 
Plans and specifications are complete for Division 1 of the Water System Improvements Project, which 
includes the construction of a new water plant.  Division 2 (raw water main) and Division 3 (wells) will go 
out for bid later this year.  The division 1 engineer’s cost estimate is $13 million, with a $1.3 million 
contingency.  A public hearing as well as a resolution approving the plans and specifications for this 
project is on Tuesday’s agenda.  Bids for this work are due on Tuesday, August 16 with the intent to 
recommend a contract award at the August 23 Council meeting.  Staff recommends approval of 
Resolution 2016-79.    

Smaller Lot Single Family Zoning (RS-9), Third and Final Reading 
In response to requests from developers, staff is suggesting a new, smaller single-family zoning district 
that is roughly equivalent in size and setback requirements to half of a smaller duplex lot. This could result 
in fewer duplexes, which developers say have started to reach a saturation point, and more single-family 
homes in the City. The main benefit to buyers is not needing to share a common wall or driveway and live 
in such close proximity to a neighboring family. Since there is no such existing district currently, every 
development proposed for this new district would need to be rezoned, affording Council the opportunity 
to judge its appropriateness. The draft in the packet included language requiring submission of front 
elevations as part of the district requirement, as was discussed at the previous meeting.   



 

 
 

Agenda 
 



 
 

 

City of North Liberty – 2016                   Updated: August 5, 2016; 10:00 a.m. 
Page: 1  

 
AGENDA 

North Liberty City Council 
August 9, 2016 
Work Session  

6:00 p.m. 
Regular Session 

6:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

 
1. Call to order   
 
2. Roll call 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
4. Work Session 

A. Community Policing Update 
B. Legal Update 
C. City Council Goals Update 

5. Consent Agenda 
A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session(rescheduled), August 1, 2016 
B. Claims 
C. Dubuque Street/North Liberty Road Project, Change Order Number 6, Streb Construction, 

$3,585.75 
D. Dubuque Street/North Liberty Road Project, Pay Application Number 5, Streb Construction, 

$312,987.61 
E. Penn Meadows Park Concrete Project, Final Pay Application, Midwest Construction, Inc., 

$13,902.75 
F. WWTP Improvements Project, Phase II, Change Order Number 7, Tricon Construction Group,  

$9,069.92 
G. WWTP Improvements Project, Phase II, Pay Application Number 11, Tricon Construction 

Group, $1,245,081.77 
H. Penn Meadows Park Splash Pad Project, Pay Application Number 2, Calacci Construction, Inc., 

$50,687.50 
I. Penn Street ICAAP Project, Pay Application Number 5, Metro Pavers, $402,149.58 
J. Penn Street ICAAP Project, Change Order Number 5, Metro Pavers, $ 9,945.27 
K. Penn Street ICAAP Project, Change Order Number 6, Metro Pavers, $ 0 

 
6. Public Comment 

 
7. City Planner Report 

 



 

 
 
City of North Liberty – 2016                   Updated: August 5, 2016; 10:00 a.m. 
Page: 2 

8. City Engineer Report  
 

9. City Attorney Report  
 

10. Assistant City Administrator Report 
 
11. City Administrator Report 

 
12. Roseberry Stop  

A. Staff and Commission recommendations  
B. Applicant presentation 
C. Resolution Number 2016-64,  A Resolution approving the Final Plat and accepting 

improvements for Roseberry Stop, North Liberty, Iowa  
D. Resolution Number 2016-71, A Resolution approving the Planned Area Development Site Plan 

for Roseberry Stop, Lot 1, North Liberty, Iowa  
 

13. Alphagraphics Site Plan 
A. Staff and Commission recommendations 
B. Applicant presentation  
C. Resolution Number 2016-77, A Resolution approving the Development Site Plan for Lot 1, 

North Park, North Liberty, Iowa  
 

14. Shive-Hattery Services Agreement 
A. Resolution Number 2016-74, A Resolution approving a Services Agreement between the City 

of North Liberty and Shive-Hattery, Inc. 
 

15. SRF Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement  
A. Public Hearing  
B. Resolution Number 2016-78, A Resolution taking additional action on a proposal to enter into 

a Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement and to borrow money thereunder in a 
principal amount not to exceed $23,000,000  
 

16. Water System Improvements, Phase 1 
A. Public Hearing regarding proposed plans, specifications, form of contract and estimate of cost 
B. Resolution Number 2016-79, A Resolution finally approving and confirming plans, 

specifications, form of contract and estimate of cost for the Phase 1 Water System 
Improvements, Division I – Water Treatment Plant 

 
17. Smaller Lot Single Family Zoning Ordinance 

A. Third consideration of Ordinance Number 2016-10, An Ordinance amending the North 
Liberty Code of Ordinances by updating Chapter 168 Zoning Code – RS Zones – Single Family 
Residence Districts, Chapter 169 Zoning Code – Development Regulations and Chapter 165 
Zoning Code  to add language regarding a smaller lot single family zoning district called  RS-9,  
Single Family Residential 

 
18. Old Business 
 
19. New Business 

 
20.  Adjournment 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
 

 

City of North Liberty – 2016                    
Page: 1  

 
Minutes 

North Liberty City Council 
Monday, August 1, 2016 

(Rescheduled from July 26, 2016) 
Regular Session 

 
Call to order   
Mayor Nielsen called the August 1, 2016 (Rescheduled from July 26, 2016) meeting to order at 6:30 
p.m.  Council members present: Chris Hoffman, Jim Sayre, Brian Wayson; absent: Terry Donahue, 
Annie Pollock.   
 
Others present:  Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Scott Peterson, Kevin Trom, Dean Wheatley and 
other interested parties.  

 
Approval of the Agenda 
Hoffman moved, Sayre seconded to approve the agenda with removal of item number 11, Shive-
Hattery Services Agreement. The vote was all ayes. The agenda is approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Hoffman moved, Wayson seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including City Council Minutes 
from the Regular Session on July 12, 2016; City Council Minutes from the Special Session on July 29, 
2016; the attached list of Claims; June Revenues; the Liquor License Renewal for Rocky O’Brien’s 
Public House, Class C Liquor License with Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales privileges; and the East 
Growth Utilities Project, Change Order Number 6 to Langman Construction in the amount of 
$3,976.76.  The vote was all ayes. Consent Agenda approved.  
 
Public Comment 
Tracey Achenbach, Johnson County Housing Trust Fund, thanked Council for their support.  She 
presented a summary of the Trust Fund’s activities.   
 
City Planner Report 
Wheatley included a chart in the packet and offered additional information regarding the data. 
   
City Engineer Report  
City Engineer Trom reported that the Dubuque/North Liberty Road Project was stalled for two 
weeks, but is now making really good progress. It is about 61% complete.  The Penn Street ICAAP 
Project is moving along with about 70% complete.  The Water System Project bids for division one 
are due on August 16. A pre-bid meeting will be held tomorrow. The Splash Pad project contractor 
is pretty much complete. City staff has a few final completion items. The splash pad could be open 
later this week.  Construction on the Waste Water Treatment Plant continues.  The SRF Sponsored 
Water Quality project preconstruction meeting is tomorrow.   The North Liberty Road Phase 2 
Project preliminary design is complete. The next step is meeting with property owners adjacent to 
the road with bidding this winter and construction next spring. 

 



 

 
 
City of North Liberty – 2016                    
Page: 2 

City Attorney Report  
City Attorney Peterson reported that he will provide a legislative update/Supreme Court update 
next Tuesday.  He will provide a case update on the Weinman case by email in next 48 hours.  

 
City Administrator Report 
City Administrator Heiar reported that the Water Plant Project will require the drilling of two new 
wells. The IDNR requires ordinance regarding permitted uses around the wells.  The ordinance will 
be presented to Council for consideration soon. The City’s Travel Policy is being updated to be more 
efficient. The policy will be in front of Council on August 9 for review and consideration. Heiar 
reported that the City has been working with interested purchasers on the southeast side of the 
Dubuque Street/North Liberty Road project.  

 
Fire Consultant Agreement 
Wayson moved, Hoffman seconded to approve Resolution Number 2016-73, A Resolution 
approving the agreement for Fire Department Services between the City of North Liberty and 
Donald L. Cox. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Hoffman, Sayre, Wayson; nays – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
TIF Ordinance 
Wayson moved, Sayre seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2016-09, An Ordinance providing for the division of taxes levied on taxable property in the 
January, 2016 addition to the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area, pursuant to Section 403.19 of the 
Code of Iowa. The vote was: ayes- Wayson, Sayre, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Smaller Lot Single Family Zoning Ordinance 
Hoffman moved, Wayson seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 
2016-10, An Ordinance amending the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by updating Chapter 168 
Zoning Code – RS Zones – Single Family Residence Districts, Chapter 169 Zoning Code – 
Development Regulations and Chapter 165 Zoning Code to add language regarding a smaller lot 
single family zoning district called RS-9.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes -   Sayre, Hoffman, 
Wayson; nays – none. Motion carried.  

 
Pedestrian Traffic Improvements Plan 
Wheatley presented the report regarding proposed improvements for the increased number of 
children walking to school the next school year.  Council discussed the report with staff.  

 
Water Project  
Wayson moved, Sayre seconded to approve Resolution Number 2016-75, A Resolution approving 
the Temporary Construction Easement Agreements and the Public Easement Agreements for the 
Water Infrastructure Improvement Project between numerous property owners and the City of 
North Liberty, Iowa.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Wayson, Sayre, Hoffman; nays – none. 
Motion carried.   
 
SRF Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement  
Hoffman moved, Sayre seconded to approve Resolution Number 2016-76, Resolution to fix a date 
for a public hearing on a proposal to enter into a Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement 
Agreement and to borrow money thereunder.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Sayre, Wayson, 
Hoffman; nays –none. Motion carried.  
 
Old Business 



 

 
 
City of North Liberty – 2016                    
Page: 3 

Councilor Sayre asked about the status of the solar panel project.  Heiar has the contracts, but is 
waiting on numbers from vendor. Heiar anticipates seeing the contract in August. The panels 
should be installed and operational by the end of the year. Sayre asked for a dog park update. 
Wheatley reported that staff is always on the lookout for appropriate location.   
 
New Business 
Wheatley provided a transit update. Mayor Nielsen spoke regarding the two way traffic on detour.   
 
Adjournment 
At 7:27 p.m., Mayor Nielsen adjourned the meeting.  
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:    ______________________________________ 
 Amy Nielsen, Mayor 

 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 2

CHANGE ORDER 

For Local Public Agency Projects

Non-Substantial:

Substantial:

No.: 6

Kind of Work: Grading / Traffic Control

Accounting ID No. (5-digit number):N/A Project Number: 115125-0

Date Prepared: July 29 , 2016Contractor:Streb Const. / CJ Moyna / Advanced Traffic

Local Public Agency: City of North Liberty

Administering Office 

Concurrence Date

N/A

Form 831240  (12-15)

  

You are hereby authorized to make the following changes to the contract documents. 

  

 A - Description of change to be made:

Temporary Tape Arrows: Add and Remove a quantity of 4 temporary tape arrows at the roundabout traffic control (ITC 13). 

 

NL Road - Sediment Removal / Erosion Repair: Clean out temp sediment basins and regrade areas damaged by rain events (ITC 14). 

 

Dubuque Street - Sediment Removal / Erosion Repair: Remove sediment and regrade south ditch damaged by rain events (ITC 14). 

 

Dubuque Street - Subgrade Coreout: Remove additional 6-inch depth of poor quality material east of school entrance (ITC 17).

  

B - Reason for change:

Temporary Tape Arrows: Provide additional visual guidance of traffic control routing. 

 

NL Road - Sediment Removal / Erosion Repair: Clean out of temporary sediment basins and regrading areas damaged by rain events.

 

Dubuque Street - Sediment Removal / Erosion Repair: Remove sediment and regrade south ditch damaged by rain events. 

 

Dubuque Street - Subgrade Coreout: Poor quality subgrade was observed during the proof roll of the subgrade east of the school 

entrance drive.  An additional 6-inch of material removal is required to establish a good subgrade for rock and paving.

  

C - Settlement for cost(s) of change as follows with items addressed in Sections F and/or G:

Temporary Tape Arrows: $147 / EA (ITC #13; Streb COR #12) 

 

NL Road - Sediment Removal / Erosion Repair: Lump Sum (ITC #14; Streb COR #13: $1,932) 

 

Dubuque Street - Sediment Removal / Erosion Repair: $152.25 / HR (ITC #14) 

 

Dubuque Street - Subgrade Coreout: $152.25 / HR (ITC #17)

  

D - Justification for cost(s) (See I.M. 3.805, Attachment D, Chapter 2.36, for acceptable justification):

See attached.

E - Contract time adjustment:           No Working Days added            Working Days added:              Unknown at this time 

Justification for selection:

Additional work not impeding controlling items











16869NAVARRECOURT PEOSTA,lA52068 ��Phone �Fax ��巨-maii 

563-845-0947 �(563)583-1007 ��midwestconcrete⑰vahoo.com 

invoiceSubmittedto: ��P「q桓Ct �Date ��lnvoice# 

CiTYOFNORTHLiBERTY ��PENNMEADOWSPARK �611112016 ��1205 

Quantity �Desc「iption ���Rate ��Amount 

PARKCONCRETEJOB ���122,055.00 ��122,055.00 iろ′禽象ユ・? 

PAYMENTRECEIVED-$108,152.25 

AMOUNTSTILLOWED: 

BRICKPAVERS　　　　　　　　$7,800.00 

RETAINAGE　　　　　　　　　　$6,102.75 

Ifyou have any questions regarding your invoice, Please ca11 563-845-0947.

Interest of l‘5% per month (18% APR) will be charged on all invoices over 30 days.

丁ota音 �$1夢・00 











Owner:  City of North Liberty Project: Penn Street ICAAP Improvements Contract: STP-A-5557(619)--86-52 Pay App# 5

Contractor:  Metro Pavers Date 8/3/2016

Item Item Code Item Unit Unit Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost

1 2101-0850002 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 30.00$                 188.8 $5,640.00 188.80       $5,664.00 188.8 5,640.00$           188.80       5,664.00$      

2 2102-2710070 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY AND BORROW    CY 18.00$                 2465 $44,370.00 2,465.00     $44,370.00 3400 $61,200.00 3,498.89     $62,980.02 5865 105,570.00$         5,963.89     107,350.02$    

3 2105-8425005 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD    CY 42.00$                 422 $17,724.00 422 17,724.00$          -          -$           

4 2105-8425015 TOPSOIL, STRIP, SALVAGE AND SPREAD CY 12.80$                 1202 $15,385.60 1,202.00     $15,385.60 1484 $18,995.20 1,484.00     $18,995.20 2686 34,380.80$          2,686.00     34,380.80$     

5 2109-8225100 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA 535.00$                23.6 $12,626.00 23.60        $12,626.00 25.8 $13,803.00 25.80        $13,803.00 49.4 26,429.00$          49.40        26,429.00$     

6 2115-0100000 MODIFIED SUBBASE    CY 28.00$                 765 $21,420.00 754.34       $21,121.52 1040 $29,120.00 929.50       $26,026.00 1805 50,540.00$          1,683.84     47,147.52$     

7 2123-7450020 SHOULDER FINISHING, EARTH    STA 295.00$                23.6 $6,962.00 23.60        $6,962.00 25.8 $7,611.00 25.80        $7,611.00 49.4 14,573.00$          49.40        14,573.00$     

8 2213-7100400 RELOCATION OF MAIL BOXES    EACH 300.00$                1 $300.00 1 300.00$             -          -$           

9 2301-1033100 STD/S-F PCC PAV'T, CL C CL 3, 10 IN. SY 44.65$                 3784 $168,955.60 3,790.80     $169,259.22 4816 $215,034.40 4,743.00     $211,774.95 8600 383,990.00$         8,533.80     381,034.17$    

10 2301-7000110 PAY ADJ INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT THICKNESS (BY SCHEDULE) EACH 1.00$                  3385 $3,385.00 5,077.78     $5,077.78 3779 $3,779.00 6,353.25     $6,353.25 7164 7,164.00$           11,431.03    11,431.03$     

11 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT    SY 41.25$                 85 $3,506.25 85.00        $3,506.25 160 $6,600.00 160.00       $6,600.00 245 10,106.25$          245.00       10,106.25$     

12 2316-0000110 PAY ADJ INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT SMOOTHNESS (BY SCHEDULE) EACH 1.00$                  2820 $2,820.00 3149 $3,149.00 5969 5,969.00$           -          -$           

13 2401-6745355 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE FOOTINGS OF HIGHWAY SIGNS    EACH 600.00$                2 $1,200.00 2.00         $1,200.00 2 1,200.00$           2.00         1,200.00$      

14 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN    LS 13,000.00$             0.4 $5,200.00 0.40         $5,200.00 0.6 $7,800.00 0.50         $6,500.00 1 13,000.00$          0.90         11,700.00$     

15 2416-0100018 APRONS, CONCRETE, 18 IN. DIA.    EACH 800.00$                1 $800.00 1.00         $800.00 1 800.00$             1.00         800.00$        

16 2416-0101036 REMOVE AND REINSTALL CONCRETE PIPE APRON LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. EACH 600.00$                1 $600.00 1.00         $600.00 1 600.00$             1.00         600.00$        

17 2435-0140148 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48 IN. EACH 2,800.00$              1 $2,800.00 1.00         $2,800.00 1 2,800.00$           1.00         2,800.00$      

18 2435-0140172 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 72 IN. EACH 6,500.00$              1 $6,500.00 1.00         $6,500.00 1 6,500.00$           1.00         6,500.00$      

19 2435-0250900 INTAKE, SW-509    EACH 4,000.00$              9 $36,000.00 9.00         $36,000.00 11 $44,000.00 11.00        $44,000.00 20 80,000.00$          20.00        80,000.00$     

20 2435-0251224 INTAKE, SW-512, 24 IN.    EACH 1,600.00$              2 $3,200.00 2.00         $3,200.00 2 $3,200.00 2.00         $3,200.00 4 6,400.00$           4.00         6,400.00$      

21 2435-0600010 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EACH 350.00$                1 $350.00 1.00         $350.00 1 350.00$             1.00         350.00$        

22 2435-0700010 CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE EACH 700.00$                1 $700.00 1.00         $700.00 1 700.00$             1.00         700.00$        

23 2435-0700020 CONNECTION TO EXISTING INTAKE EACH 700.00$                1 $700.00 1 $700.00 1.00         $700.00 2 1,400.00$           1.00         700.00$        

24 2502-8212036 SUBDRAIN, LONGITUDINAL, (SHOULDER) 6 IN. DIA. LF 9.00$                  765 $6,885.00 765.00       $6,885.00 1540 $13,860.00 1,077.00     $9,693.00 2305 20,745.00$          1,842.00     16,578.00$     

25 2502-8221006 SUBDRAIN RISER, 6 IN., AS PER PLAN LF 400.00$                2 $800.00 2.00         $800.00 3 $1,200.00 3.00         $1,200.00 5 2,000.00$           5.00         2,000.00$      

26 2502-8221303 SUBDRAIN OUTLET, DR-303    EACH 200.00$                7 $1,400.00 7.00         $1,400.00 6 $1,200.00 6.00         $1,200.00 13 2,600.00$           13.00        2,600.00$      

27 2502-8221305 SUBDRAIN OUTLET, DR-305    EACH 350.00$                1 $350.00 1.00         $350.00 1 350.00$             1.00         350.00$        

28 2503-0114215 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 15 IN. LF 62.00$                 1153 $71,486.00 1,153.00     $71,486.00 1704 $105,648.00 1,704.00     $105,648.00 2857 177,134.00$         2,857.00     177,134.00$    

29 2503-0114218 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 18 IN. LF 70.00$                 89 $6,230.00 89.00        $6,230.00 40 $2,800.00 40.00        $2,800.00 129 9,030.00$           129.00       9,030.00$      

30 2503-0114224 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 24 IN. LF 80.00$                 30 $2,400.00 30.00        $2,400.00 4 $320.00 4.00         $320.00 34 2,720.00$           34.00        2,720.00$      

31 2503-0114236 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 36 IN. LF 120.00$                14 $1,680.00 14.00        $1,680.00 14 1,680.00$           14.00        1,680.00$      

33 2503-0200036 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN.    LF 9.00$                  98 $882.00 98.00        $882.00 192 $1,728.00 192.00       $1,728.00 290 2,610.00$           290.00       2,610.00$      

34 2504-01504100 SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 10 IN. LF 35.00$                 1240 $43,400.00 1,240.00     $43,400.00 1240 43,400.00$          1,240.00     43,400.00$     

35 2504-0230000 SEWAGE AIR RELEASE VALVE AND PIT EACH 4,500.00$              1 $4,500.00 1.00         $4,500.00 1 4,500.00$           1.00         4,500.00$      

36 2510-6745850 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT    SY 9.50$                  480 $4,560.00 491.60       $4,670.20 2215 $21,042.50 2,240.00     $21,280.00 2695 25,602.50$          2,731.60     25,950.20$     

37 2512-1725206 CURB AND GUTTER, P.C. CONCRETE, 2.0 FT.    LF 20.00$                 1104 $22,080.00 320.00       $6,400.00 1104 22,080.00$          320.00       6,400.00$      

38 2512-1859000 CURB, SPECIAL, AS PER PLAN LF 7.60$                  1340 $10,184.00 1340 10,184.00$          -          -$           

39 2515-2475007 DRIVEWAY, P.C. CONCRETE, 7 IN.    SY 45.00$                 75 $3,375.00 75.00        $3,375.00 75 3,375.00$           75.00        3,375.00$      

40 2524-6765010 REMOVE AND REINSTALL SIGN AS PER PLAN EACH 250.00$                4 $1,000.00 4 1,000.00$           -          -$           

41 2524-6765210 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 50.00$                 4 $200.00 1 $50.00 5 250.00$             -          -$           

42 2524-9081260 CONCRETE FOOTING FOR BREAKAWAY SIGN POST, 2'-0" DIA. X6'-0" EACH 575.00$                2 $1,150.00 2 1,150.00$           -          -$           

43 2524-9276010 PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 11.50$                 60 $690.00 60 690.00$             -          -$           

44 2524-9281121 STEEL BREAKAWAY SIGN POSTS FOR TYPE A OR B SIGNS, W 6 X 12 LF 60.00$                 28 $1,680.00 28 1,680.00$           -          -$           

45 2524-9325001 TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM    SF 30.00$                 14 $420.00 14 420.00$             -          -$           

46 2525-0000100 TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION LS 288,111.00$            1 $288,111.00 0.06         $17,272.00 1 288,111.00$         0.06         17,272.00$     

47 2527-9263118 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, EPOXY    STA 47.00$                 155.4 $7,303.80 140.4 $6,598.80 295.8 13,902.60$          -          -$           

48 2527-9263131 WET RETROREFLECTIVE REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS STA 115.00$                11 $1,265.00 2.12         $243.80 22 $2,530.00 3.97         $456.55 33 3,795.00$           6.09         700.35$        

49 2527-9263146 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS, EPOXY    EACH 210.00$                9 $1,890.00 11 $2,310.00 20 4,200.00$           -          -$           

50 2527-9263180 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED STA 38.50$                 158 $6,083.00 0.62         $23.87 149 $5,736.50 1.25         $48.13 307 11,819.50$          1.87         72.00$         

51 2527-9263190 SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS REMOVED EACH 85.00$                 10 $850.00 3.00         $255.00 5 $425.00 5.00         $425.00 15 1,275.00$           8.00         680.00$        

52 2528-8445110 TRAFFIC CONTROL    LS 10,500.00$             0.5 $5,250.00 0.40         $4,200.00 0.5 $5,250.00 0.40         $4,200.00 1 10,500.00$          0.80         8,400.00$      

53 2528-8445113 FLAGGER    EACH 435.00$                3 $1,305.00 0.50         $217.50 3 $1,305.00 1.50         $652.50 6 2,610.00$           2.00         870.00$        

54 2533-4980005 MOBILIZATION    LS 100,000.00$            0.5 $50,000.00 0.50         $50,000.00 0.5 $50,000.00 0.50         $50,000.00 1 100,000.00$         1.00         100,000.00$    

55 2554-0114012 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 12 IN. LF 37.00$                 2550 $94,350.00 2,557.00     $94,609.00 2550 94,350.00$          2,557.00     94,609.00$     

56 2554-0124012 WATER MAIN, TRENCHLESS, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 12 IN. LF 100.00$                420 $42,000.00 420.00       $42,000.00 420 42,000.00$          420.00       42,000.00$     

57 2554-0202200 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, AS PER PLAN EACH 700.00$                5 $3,500.00 6.00         $4,200.00 17 $11,900.00 20.00        $14,000.00 22 15,400.00$          26.00        18,200.00$     

58 2554-0207012 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 12 IN. EACH 2,100.00$              6 $12,600.00 7.00         $14,700.00 6 12,600.00$          7.00         14,700.00$     

59 2554-0210201 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, WM-201    EACH 4,500.00$              5 $22,500.00 5.00         $22,500.00 5 22,500.00$          5.00         22,500.00$     

60 2555-0000010 DELIVER AND STOCKPILE SALVAGED MATERIALS LS 1,000.00$              1 $1,000.00 1 1,000.00$           -          -$           

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

AwardedTo Date

Division 1

Awarded

Division 2 TOTAL

To Date To DateAwarded





Page 1 of 2

CHANGE ORDER 

For Local Public Agency Projects

Non-Substantial:

Substantial:

No.: 5

Kind of Work: PCC Pavement Widening

Accounting ID No. (5-digit number):33025 Project Number: STP-A-5557(619)--86-52

Date Prepared: July 29, 2016Contractor:Metro Pavers, Inc.

Local Public Agency: North Liberty

Administering Office 

Concurrence Date

Form 831240  (12-15)

  

You are hereby authorized to make the following changes to the contract documents. 

  

 A - Description of change to be made:

8005  Add item for "Excavation, Class 10, Unstable or Unsuitable Material" (36.48 CY Div 1; 98.89 CY Div 2).  Work consists of 

removing unsuitable below grade soils.  Method of Measurement: Cubic yards, as determined by Engineer.  Basis of Payment: Per 

cubic yard.  This payment is full compensation for all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the work as described. 

8006  Add item for "Patches, Partial-Depth P.C.C. Finish" (3.8 SF Div 1; 53.5 SF Div 2).  Work consists of completing partial-depth 

PCC repair at several areas where the old concrete median was removed.  The specification for the work is Iowa DOT Standard 

Specification 2530 (Partial Depth Finish Patches), and shall utilize Class C patching material and minimum 36-hour cure time. 

8007  Add item "Water Main Abandonment" (Division 2).  Method of Measurement: Item will not be measured separately for 

payment.  Basis of Payment: Lump Sum.  This payment is full compensation for all labor, equipment and materials necessary to 

perform the work as described.
  

B - Reason for change:

8005  The subgrade proof roll on the north side of Penn Street from STA 80+50 to STA 82+07 showed unsuitable soil near the top 6-

inces of the subgrade (36.48 CY).  An old sealcoat pavement layer (8") was found below the east landscape median planting area 

(STA 65+60 to STA 70+05; 9' wide) that needed to be removed to prevent restricting root depths of the new plantings (98.89 CY). 

8006  This project included removal of the existing raised concrete medians from the existing roadway slab.  The median removal 

operation resulted in a few locations of surface damage to the underlying slab (57.30 SF). 

8007  Construction of new water main and connection to existing system at Cameron Way also required removal and cap of old 

connection to the abandoned water main, one piece of pipe and two fittings.  The disconnection work was not specified in the Plans.

  

C - Settlement for cost(s) of change as follows with items addressed in Sections F and/or G:

8005 - Agreed Unit Price 

 

8006 - Agreed Unit Price 

 

8007 - Agreed Lump Sum Price

  

D - Justification for cost(s) (See I.M. 3.805, Attachment D, Chapter 2.36, for acceptable justification):

8005 - The contract does not contain a unit price for below grade excavation, the Contractor was directed to provide below grade 

excavation, and the contract documents did not indicate below grade excavation would be required.  Per Specification 2102.05, the 

work is paid for at double the contract unit price for Class 10 excavation. 

8006 - An agreed upon unit price for the work was established based on approved estimate of materials, equipment and labor for the 

scope of work requested.  Resulting unit price is within the range of past DOT bids for this work item of comparable quantity. 

8007 - An agreed upon lump sum price for the work was established.  The cost includes 10% Prime Contractor markup per Standard 

Specification 1109.03,B,3 ($100 minimum per specification). 

E - Contract time adjustment:           No Working Days added            Working Days added:              Unknown at this time 

Justification for selection:

Water main work was not controlling operation.  Working day not charged for seal coat removal.  Unsuitable material removed 

during sanitary force main delay period, no working day charged.





Page 1 of 2

CHANGE ORDER 

For Local Public Agency Projects

Non-Substantial:

Substantial:

No.: 6

Kind of Work: PCC Pavement Widening

Accounting ID No. (5-digit number):33025 Project Number: STP-A-5557(619)--86-52

Date Prepared: August 3, 2016Contractor:Metro Pavers, Inc.

Local Public Agency: North Liberty

Administering Office 

Concurrence Date

Aug 4, 2016

Form 831240  (12-15)

  

You are hereby authorized to make the following changes to the contract documents. 

  

 A - Description of change to be made:

8999  Add item for "Stored Materials."  Work consists of providing material stored at the project site (and other locations) that will 

be incorporated in the project.  Method of Measurement: Item will not be measured separately for payment.  Basis of Payment:  

Lump Sum; 100% of invoice cost for material properly documented and properly stored at the project, and 90% of invoice cost for 

material properly documented and stored elsewhere.

  

B - Reason for change:

8999  Contractor requested payment for material cost of items ordered and received for the new traffic signal installation.

  

C - Settlement for cost(s) of change as follows with items addressed in Sections F and/or G:

8999 - Agreed Lump Sum.  Percentage of invoice cost as described above in the Basis of Payment description.  The value of the 

Stored Materials line item will be decreased as the stored material is incorporated into the project, and included for payment under 

the appropriate contract item, until the line item for stored materials equals zero.

  

D - Justification for cost(s) (See I.M. 3.805, Attachment D, Chapter 2.36, for acceptable justification):

8999 - Percentage of invoice cost as described above in Basis of Payment description is consistent with Iowa DOT Construction 

Manual Section 2.51 (Payment for Material Allowance) and Standard Specification 1109.05,A.,2. 

E - Contract time adjustment:           No Working Days added            Working Days added:              Unknown at this time 

Justification for selection:

Does not affect controlling item.





 

 
 

Roseberry Stop 
 





North Liberty – 2016 Resolution Number 2016-64 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2016-64 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT AND ACCEPTING 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR ROSEBERRY STOP NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
 

 
IOWA: 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

 
WHEREAS, the owner, Francis Lenane and Christine Wohlford-Lenane, has filed 

with the City Clerk a final plat for the property described in Exhibit A, which is attached 
hereto and made a part hereof; 

 
WHEREAS, said real estate is owned by the above-named parties and the 

subdivision is being made with the free consent and in accordance with the desires of the 
owners; 

 
WHEREAS, said final plat is found to conform with Chapter 354 of the Code of Iowa 

and ordinances of the City of North Liberty; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty approved an Agreement with Francis Lenane and 

Christine Wohlford-Lenane for the installation of Property Improvements for Roseberry Stop 
as a condition of final plat approval, said; and  

 
WHEREAS, the requirements of the Agreement for Roseberry Stop entitled Property 

Improvements, except for sidewalks, have been installed in accordance with the design 
standards and Municipal Code requirements of the City of North Liberty. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the final plat of Roseberry Stop, as shown 

on the final plat and that Property Improvements, except for sidewalks, are hereby approved 
and accepted. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016.  

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  ATTEST: 
 
 
 

AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 

 



June 28, 2016 

 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 

From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 

Subject: Site Plan Approval Request 

(Proposed lot 1, Roseberry Stop) 

 

Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in this 

memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 

Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 

Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 

Tom Palmer, City Building Official 

Scott Peterson, City Attorney 

Kevin Trom, City Engineer 

Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 

 

This request from Francis and Christine Lenane to approve a site plan for multi-family property located 

on the west side of South Front Street, just north of Creekside Commons condominiums. The zoning is 

RM-8 PAD, multi-family, and this site is part of a larger overall property that extends west to the 

CRANDIC railroad. Muddy Creek bisects the larger Lenane property north to south, and the creek and 

timber are immediately west of the proposed condominiums.  

 

A site plan was previously approved for this location some time ago but has since expired, and this plan is 

very similar but updated where necessary to meet current ordinance requirements. That plan had 19 

smaller units on this same site now proposed for 16 units, and did not include sidewalks or extra parking 

found on the new plan. Visually, this site will lay out much like the Creekside Commons development to 

the south. Zoning Ordinance requirements are met.  

 

The buildings are an attractive rowhouse design with generous windows, roofline changes, offsets, 

masonry, and porches, and will be an asset in the area. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the site plan. 

 

 

 

 

Notes:  

A Preliminary Plat Agreement has been approved by Council for the subdivision. 

A BMP maintenance agreement is required. 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval without conditions by Planning Commission at their meeting on 7/5/2016.

























City of North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-71 
Page: 1 

Resolution No. 2016-71 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN FOR ROSEBERRY STOP, LOT 1, 
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
  
 WHEREAS, the owner, Frank Lenane, has filed with the City Clerk a planned area 
development site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as:  
 

Lot 1, Roseberry Stop, containing 2.32 acres subject to easements and restrictions of 
record, North Liberty, Iowa;     

 WHEREAS, said planned area development site plan is found to conform with the 
Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Ordinance of the City of North Liberty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planned area development site plan has been examined by the 
North Liberty Planning and Zoning Commission, which recommended that the planned 
area development site plan be approved with no conditions. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
does hereby approve the planned area development site plan for Roseberry Stop, Lot 1, 
North Liberty, Iowa. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR    TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Alphagraphics Site Plan 
 



July 25, 2016 

 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Site Plan Approval Request 
(Lot 1 Kennel Court) 
 
Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in 
this memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 
Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This request is to approve a site plan for commercial warehouse development on Kennel Court, Lot 1 
North Park subdivision. The development is at the northwest corner of Kennel Court and 240th 
Street. 
 
The site layout is straightforward, with a large L-shaped industrial metal building and a small parking 
area. The landscaping plan, building design, and overall layout meet basic requirements for 
development. There is no outside storage shown so none will be allowed unless specifically 
approved at a later time. Parking is minimal for many uses in a building of this size, but meets the 
requirement for the category of “industry,” and there is room on the site for potential expansion if 
necessary in the future. Even though the property is zoned Industrial it is in a very visible location on 
240th Street, and there is very limited landscaping shown. Other industrial sites in less visible areas 
have made a greater effort to include a higher degree of landscaping, and this site would benefit 
from the same. Note that some additional landscaping was added after initial staff comments. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the commercial-industrial site plan. 
 
 

Notes: 

The Fire Department will need verification that the 6” pavement planned will support 75,000 lbs. 
during construction plan review. 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by Planning Commission 8/2/2016 subject to bulking up 240th Street frontage landscaping.



(SCALE: APPROX. 1" = 400')

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

1325 KENNEL COURT
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

LOCATION MAP

SITE PLAN

ALPHA GRAPHICS

LOT 1, NORTH PARK

CONTACT PERSON

INDEX OF SHEETS

UTILITY AND EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS

WATER AND WASTE WATER
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

(319)626-5700

AGENCY CONTACT NUMBER

POLICE DEPARTMENT
BUSINESS
EMERGENCY

FIRE DEPARTMENT
BUSINESS
EMERGENCY

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY (NAT. GAS)
BUSINESS
EMERGENCY

IOWA ONE CALL (UTILITIES)

ALLIANT ENERGY (ELECTRIC)
BUSINESS

MEDIACOM (CABLE TV)
BUSINESS
LOCATES

(319)626-5724

(319)626-5717

(319)292-8989

(800)329-6261
(800)595-5325

(800)255-4268

(800)332-0245
(800)292-8989

911

911

LINN COUNTY R.E.C. (ELECTRIC)
BUSINESS (800)332-5400

SOUTH SLOPE (TELEPHONE, CABLE TV)
BUSINESS
LOCATES

(319)626-2211
(800)292-8989



ST12

(OHE)

<> <> <> <>

SS8

// //

(W12)



//
//

//
//

////////////////

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

(W
6)

(W6)
(W6)

(W6)

(W6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(S
T1

2)
(S

T1
2)

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

(E) (E) (E) (E) (E) (E)
(E) (E) (E) (E) (E) (E)

(E) (E)(E)

(ST15
)

(SS6)

(SS6)

(SS6)

(ST12)

(E)

(E)

(E)
(E)

(E)
(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(ST15)

W

SS

SS

LANDSCAPE SCHEDULE



//
//

//
//

////////////////

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

(W
6)

(W6)
(W6)

(W6)

(W6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(W
6)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(S
T1

2)
(S

T1
2)

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

(E) (E) (E) (E) (E) (E)
(E) (E) (E) (E) (E) (E)

(E) (E)(E)

(ST15
)

(SS6)

(SS6)

(SS6)

(ST12)

(E)

(E)

(E)
(E)

(E)
(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(ST15)

W

SS

SS



//
//

//
//

////////////////

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(G
)

(S
T1

2)
(S

T1
2)

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

ST12

(E) (E) (E) (E) (E) (E)
(E) (E) (E) (E) (E) (E)

(E) (E)(E)

(ST15
)

(ST12)

(E)

(E)

(E)
(E)

(E)
(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(ST15)

<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>
<>

<>

<>
<> <> <>

<>

<>

<> <>

<>

<> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <> <>
<>

<>
<>



dwheatley
Text Box
Masonry768 sq.ft. required by code.786 sq.ft. provided



7/25/161/8"

West Elevation

North Elevation

SCALE:DRAWINGS PROVIDED BY: DESCRIPTION

Eastern Iowa Building, Inc.
104 Williams Blvd.
Fairfax, IA 52228
(319) 845-8000

DATE:BY DATENO.PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
Alphagraphics

Dennis Tallman
North Liberty, IA

SHEET TITLE:
Elevation Veiws

4



7/25/161/8"

East Elevation

South Elevation

SCALE:DRAWINGS PROVIDED BY: DESCRIPTION

Eastern Iowa Building, Inc.
104 Williams Blvd.
Fairfax, IA 52228
(319) 845-8000

DATE:BY DATENO.PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
Alphagraphics

Dennis Tallman
North Liberty, IA

SHEET TITLE:
Elevation Veiws 3



6/15/16NONE

SCALE:DRAWINGS PROVIDED BY: DESCRIPTION

Eastern Iowa Building, Inc.
104 Williams Blvd.
Fairfax, IA 52228
(319) 845-8000

DATE:BY DATENO.PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
Alphagraphics

Dennis Tallman
North Liberty, IA

SHEET TITLE:
Rendered Views

2



City of North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-77 
Page: 1 

Resolution No. 2016-77 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN 
FOR LOT 1, NORTH PARK, NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
  
 WHEREAS, the owner, Tallman Properties, L.C., has filed with the City Clerk a 
development site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as:  
 

Lot 1, North Park, North Liberty, Iowa;     

 WHEREAS, said site plan is found to conform with the Comprehensive Plan and the 
Zoning Ordinance of the City of North Liberty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said site plan has been examined by the North Liberty Planning and 
Zoning Commission, which recommended that the site plan be approved with the condition 
that additional landscaping be added to the 240th Street frontage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
does hereby approve the development site plan for Lot 1, North Park, North Liberty, Iowa. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR    TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Shive-Hattery Service 
Agreement 

 



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-74 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2016-74 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY AND SHIVE-
HATTERY, INC.  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to construct a brine production building and 

create additional storage for the Water Department;  
 

WHEREAS, Shive-Hattery, Inc. has presented a proposal for services relating to the 
this project; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the agreement presented by Shive-
Hattery is approved for services relating to the Penn Street Improvements Agreement at a 
lump sum fee of $133,000 plus costs of expenses is hereby approved as set forth therein.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Administrator is hereby authorized and 

ordered to execute the agreement with said engineering firm for the project. 
 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR    TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 

 

Project # 116164P   
 

 

PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES 

 
TO:   City of North Liberty 
 
ATTN:     Mr. Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
   P.O. Box 77 

North Liberty, Iowa 52317 
 
PROJECT NAME: North Liberty Brine Production and Water Equipment and Maintenance Facility 
 
DATE:   July 20, 2016 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Design, bidding and construction phase services for a new Brine Production 
and Water Equipment and Maintenance Facility on the North Liberty public works campus on Front 
Street.  The project consists of a new 6-bay pre-engineered metal building with an additional bay 
dedicated to brine production.  The new building shall match the existing Streets and Maintenance 
Building in finish and construction.  Amenities include all brine making equipment, wall insulation, 
radiant heat, lighting and a dedicated parking area.  The new building will not have a sprinkler system.  
The project will include an alternate bid for an additional two vehicle bays.  Exhibits of the project 
concept plan and Concept Phase project cost opinion are included with this proposal as attachments.  
   
The undersigned Client and Shive-Hattery, Inc. (S-H) agree as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES:  S-H will provide the following professional services: 
 
1. Design Phase:  Design phase shall include the following services. 

 
a. Topographic Survey:  We will provide a topographic survey for the project including 

surface features, topographic information, and utilities as located by One-Call.  The 
survey will be used as the base map for the design plan. 
 

b. Design Services:  We will provide design services for Schematic Design, Design 
Development and Contract Document phases of the project. The design process will 
include regular meetings with City of North Liberty stakeholders.  Deliverables will 
include document sets at the completion of each phase of design.  Each package will 
be reviewed and approved by City staff prior to proceeding with the next phase.  The 
Contract Document phase will consist of drawings and a project manual of 
specifications suitable for public bidding. 

 
c. Coordination and Permitting:  We will provide documents suitable for a general 

contractor to apply to the City of North Liberty for a building permit.  We will make 
corrections as required by the City of North Liberty to receive a building permit.  We will 
prepare and submit a DNR SWPPP permit application. 
 

d. Cost Opinion:  We will prepare opinions of probable construction costs for the project.  
Updated cost opinions will be prepared and reviewed with City staff as a deliverable 
with each preliminary and final design phase submittal package. 

 
 

2. Bidding Phase:  Services include distribution of contract documents to potential bidders, 



Page 2 of 3 

Project # 116164P  |  July 20, 2016 

 

preparation of Bid Phase documents in the form of addenda to the contract documents as 
needed.  We will receive, review and make recommendations to the owner on all product 
substitutions requests, attend the pre-bid meeting and bid opening, prepare tabulation of bids, 
and provide recommendation to Owner regarding award of contract. 
 

3. Construction Phase:  Services include the following based upon a ten-month construction 
period. 

 
a. Prepare and distribute construction contract and Notice to Proceed. 
 
b. Review form of contract, bonds, and insurance. 
 
c. Schedule and facilitate a preconstruction meeting to communicate schedule and the 

administrative details of the project. 
 
d. Provide construction staking. 
 
e. Provide construction testing including subgrade compaction and concrete testing. 
 
f. Provide construction observation reports at appropriate intervals to determine if the 

work is proceeding in general conformance with the contract documents. 
 
g. Facilitate and participate in regular construction progress meetings once construction 

mobilization has commenced. 
 
h. Review contractor submittals.  Issue clarifications and authorize changes to the contract 

documents.  Negotiate and prepare change orders as needed. 
 
i. Review payment applications and provide recommendation to Owner for payment. 
 
j. Provide final review of work to determine if work has been completed satisfactorily.  

Prepare list of deficient items to the contractor as needed.  Review final payment 
application, bonds, and provide recommendation to Owner for final acceptance. 

 
k. Review and Submit Record Drawings provided by the Contractor. 
 

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES:  It will be your responsibility to provide the following: 
 
1. Participation at design review meetings and review of design phase submittals.  Provide 

feedback and authorization to proceed after each design phase and after bid letting. 
 
2. Schedule and conduct informational meeting(s) with the public as deemed necessary. 
 
3. Provide daily construction observation services to monitor progress of the project and provide 

on-site communications with the Contractor, engineer and adjacent property owners. 
 

4. Environmental permitting, if required. 
 
5. Provide funding for the project. 

 
  



Page 3 of 3 

Project # 116164P  |  July 20, 2016 

 

SCHEDULE:   We will begin our services immediately after execution of this Agreement.  The services 
will be completed in a timely manner.  We understand that the project schedule goal is for bidding to 
occur Spring 2017 with construction to begin Summer 2017. 
 
COMPENSATION:  We will provide the Scope of Services for the following fee: 
 

Design & Bidding Phase  $  93,000 Lump Sum 
 Construction Phase  $  40,000 Hourly (estimated) 
 Total  $  133,000 
 
Reimbursable Expenses shall be paid as-incurred.  We will not proceed with Bidding or Construction 
Phase services until authorized by the City. 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Additional services requested that are not included in the Scope of Services 
will be provided at standard hourly rates. 
 
AGREEMENT:  This proposal shall become the Agreement for Services when signed and dated by both 
parties.  The attached STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS are made a part of this proposal and 
Agreement for Services.  Please return a signed copy to us. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE: 
 
Proposal accepted and work is 
authorized to proceed: 
 
THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERY, IOWA  SHIVE-HATTERY, INC. 
 

       
            BY:                                                                                                              .             

         Brian Gotwals, AIA 
TITLE:                                                          
 
DATE ACCEPTED:                                     .                                       
 
BLG/bad 
 
Enc.: Standard Terms and Conditions 
 Cost Opinion 
 Site Plan 

  

 
 
 
 
 



 

Copyright © Shive-Hattery March 2016 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
PARTIES 
"S-H" shall mean Shive-Hattery, Inc., Shive-Hattery A/E Services, P.C., or Design Organization, a Division of Shive-Hattery, Inc.  

"CLIENT" shall mean the person or entity executing this Agreement with "S-H." 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND WAIVER OF CERTAIN DAMAGES 
The CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent of the law, to limit the liability of S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, 

employees, agents, subconsultants, affiliated companies, and any of them, to the CLIENT and any person or entity 

claiming by or through the CLIENT, for any and all claims, damages, liabilities, losses, costs, and expenses including  

reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees,   or any other legal costs  ,  in any way related to the Project or Agreement from 

any cause(s)  to an amount that shall not exceed the compensation received by S-H under the agreement or fifty 

thousand dollars ($50,000), whichever is greater. The parties intend that this limitation of liability apply to any and all 

liability or cause of action, claim, theory of recovery, or remedy however alleged or arising, including but not limited to 

negligence, errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty, express, implied or equitable indemnity 

and all other claims, which except for the limitation of liability above, the CLIENT waives. 
 

CLIENT hereby releases S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, subconsultants, affiliated 

companies, and any of them, and none shall be liable to the CLIENT for consequential, special, exemplary, punitive, 

indirect or incidental losses or damages, including but not limited to loss of use, loss of product, cost of capital, loss of 

goodwill, lost revenues or loss of profit, interruption of business, down time costs, loss of data, cost of cover, or 

governmental penalties or fines.  

INDEMNIFICATION  
Subject to the limitation of liability in this Agreement, S-H agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and 

hold harmless the CLIENT, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, contractors, subcontractors and consultants 

against all claims, damages, liabilities, losses or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, or other legal 

costs to the extent caused by S-H’s negligent performance of service under this Agreement and that of its officers, 

directors, shareholders, and employees.  

 

The CLIENT agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless S-H, its officers, directors, 

shareholders, employees, agents,, subconsultants, and affiliated companies against all damages, liabilities, losses, 

costs, and expenses including,  reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert’s fees, and any other legal costs to the extent caused 

by the acts or omissions of the CLIENT, its employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or anyone for 

whom the CLIENT is legally liable. 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold S-H, its officers, directors, 

shareholders, employees, agents, consultants and affiliated companies, and any of them harmless from and against any 

and all claims, liabilities, losses, costs,  or expenses including  reasonable attorney’s fees, experts’ fees and any other 

legal costs  (including without limitation damages to property, injuries or death to persons, fines, or penalties), arising 

out of, or resulting from the discharge, escape, release, or saturation of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acids, alkalies, toxic 

chemicals, liquids, gases, polychlorinated biphenyl, petroleum contaminants, spores, biological toxins, or any other 

materials, irritants, contaminants, or pollutants in or into the atmosphere, or on, onto, upon, in, or into the surface or 

subsurface of soil, water, or watercourses, objects, or any tangible or intangible matter, whether sudden or not. 

STANDARD OF CARE 
Services provided by S-H under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill 

ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances on projects of similar 

size, complexity, and geographic location as that of the Project.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create, nor shall it be 

construed to create, a fiduciary duty owed by either party to the other party. 

BETTERMENT 
The CLIENT recognizes and expects that certain change orders may be required to be issued as the result in whole or part of 

imprecision, incompleteness, omissions, ambiguities, or inconsistencies in S-H’s drawings, specifications, and other design, 

bidding or construction documentation furnished by S-H or in other professional services performed or furnished by S-H under this 

Agreement (herein after in this Betterment section referred to as S-H Documentation).  If a required item or component of the 

Project is omitted from S-H’s Documentation, the CLIENT is responsible for paying all costs required to add such item or 

component to the extent that such item or component would have been required and included in the original S-H Documentation. 

In no event will S-H be responsible for costs or expense that provides betterment or upgrades or enhances the value of the 

Project. 



Page 2 of 4 

Copyright © Shive-Hattery March 2016 
 

 

RIGHT OF ENTRY 
The CLIENT shall provide for entry for the employees, agents and subcontractors of S-H and for all necessary equipment.  While 

S-H shall take reasonable precautions to minimize any damage to property, it is understood by the CLIENT that in the normal 

course of the project some damages may occur, the cost of correction of which is not a part of this Agreement. 

PAYMENT 
Unless otherwise provided herein, invoices will be prepared in accordance with S-H's standard invoicing practices then in effect 

and will be submitted to CLIENT each month and at the completion of the work on the project.  Invoices are due and payable upon 

receipt by the CLIENT.  If the CLIENT does not make payment within thirty (30) days after the date the invoice was mailed to the 

CLIENT, then the amount(s) due S-H shall bear interest due from the date of mailing at the lesser interest rate of 1.5% per month 

compounded or the maximum interest rate allowed by law.  In the event that S-H files or takes any action, or incurs any costs, 
for the collection of amounts due it from the client, S-H shall be entitled to recover its entire cost for attorney fees and other 

collection expenses related to the collection of amounts due it under this Agreement.  Any failure to comply with this term shall be 

grounds for a default termination. 

TERMINATION 
Either party may terminate this Agreement for convenience or for default by providing written notice to the other party.  If the 

termination is for default, the non-terminating party may cure the default before the effective date of the termination and the 

termination for default will not be effective.  The termination for convenience and for default, if the default is not cured, shall be 

effective seven (7) days after receipt of written notice by the non-terminating party.  In the event that this Agreement is terminated 

for the convenience of either party or terminated by S-H for the default of the CLIENT, then S-H shall be paid for services 

performed to the termination effective date, including reimbursable expenses due, and termination expenses attributable to the 

termination.  In the event the CLIENT terminates the Agreement for the default of S-H and S-H does not cure the default, then S-H 

shall be paid for services performed to the termination notice date, including reimbursable expenses due, but shall not be paid for 

services performed after the termination notice date and shall not be paid termination expenses.  Termination expenses shall 

include expenses reasonably incurred by S-H in connection with the termination of the Agreement or services, including, but not 

limited to, closing out Project records, termination of subconsultants and other persons or entities whose services were retained 

for the Project, and all other expenses directly resulting from the termination. 

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS 
S-H shall indicate to the CLIENT the information needed for rendering of services hereunder.  The CLIENT shall provide to S-H 

such information, including electronic media, as is available to the CLIENT and the CLIENT's consultants and contractors, and S-

H shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof.  The CLIENT recognizes that it is difficult for S-H to 

assure the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of such client-furnished information, either because it is provided by others or 

because of errors or omissions which may have occurred in assembling the information the CLIENT is providing.  Accordingly, the 

CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, 

employees, agents, subconsultants and affiliated companies, and any of them,  from and against any and all claims, liabilities, 

losses, costs , expenses (including  reasonable attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, and any other legal costs)  for injury or loss arising 

or allegedly arising from errors, omissions or inaccuracies in documents or other information provided by the CLIENT. 

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES 
Information for location of underground utilities may come from the CLIENT, third parties, and/or research performed by S-H or its 

subcontractors.  S-H will use the standard of care defined in this Agreement in providing this service.  The information that S-H 

must rely on from various utilities and other records may be inaccurate or incomplete.  Therefore, the CLIENT agrees, to the 

fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless S-H, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees agents, 

subconsultants, affiliated companies, and any of them for all claims, losses, costs and damages arising out of the location of 

underground utilities provided or any information related to underground utilities by S-H under this Agreement. 

CONTRACTOR MATTERS 
CLIENT agrees that S-H shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the CLIENT’s contractor, or subcontractors, their 

employees, agents, consultants, suppliers or arising from contractor’s or subcontractors’ work, their employees, agents, 

consultants, suppliers or other entities that are responsible for performing work that is not in conformance with the construction 

Contract Documents, if any, prepared by S-H under this Agreement. S-H shall not have responsibility for means, methods, 

techniques, sequences, and progress of construction of the contractor, subcontractors, agents, employees, agents, consultants, or 

others entities.  In addition, CLIENT agrees that S-H is not responsible for safety at the project site and that safety during 

construction is for the CLIENT to address in the contract between the CLIENT and contractor. 

SHOP DRAWING REVIEW 
If, as part of this Agreement S-H reviews and approves Contractor submittals, such as shop drawings, product data, samples and 

other data, as required by S-H, these reviews and approvals shall be only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with 



Page 3 of 4 

Copyright © Shive-Hattery March 2016 
 

 

the design concept and the information expressed in the contract documents.  This review shall not include review of the accuracy 

or completeness of details, such as quantities, dimensions, weights or gauges, fabrication processes, construction means or 

methods, coordination of the work with other trades or construction safety precautions, all of which are the sole responsibility of 

the Contractor.  S-H's review shall be conducted with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in S-H's judgment to 

permit adequate review.  Review of a specific item shall not indicate that S-H has reviewed the entire assembly of which the item 

is a component.  S-H shall not be responsible for any deviations from the contract documents not brought to the attention of S-H in 

writing by the Contractor.  S-H shall not be required to review partial submissions or those for which submissions of correlated 

items have not been received. 

OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST 
If, as part of this Agreement S-H is providing opinions of probable construction cost, the CLIENT understands that S-H has no 

control over costs or the price of labor, equipment or materials, or over the Contractor's method of pricing, and that S-H's opinions 

of probable construction costs are to be made on the basis of S-H's qualifications and experience.  S-H makes no warranty, 

expressed or implied, as to the accuracy of such opinions as compared to bid or actual costs. 

CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION 
If, as part of this Agreement S-H is providing construction observation services, S-H shall visit the project at appropriate intervals 

during construction to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the contractors' work and to determine if the work 

is proceeding in general accordance with the Contract Documents.  Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, the CLIENT has 

not retained S-H to make detailed inspections or to provide exhaustive or continuous project review and observation services.  S-

H does not guarantee the performance of, and shall have no responsibility for, the acts or omissions of any contractor, its 

subcontractors, employees, agents, consultants, suppliers or any other entities furnishing materials or performing any work on the 

project. 

S-H shall advise the CLIENT if S-H observes that the contractor is not performing in general conformance of Contract Documents.  

CLIENT shall determine if work of contractor should be stopped to resolve any problems. 

OTHER SERVICES 
The CLIENT may direct S-H to provide other services including, but not limited to, any additional services identified in S-H's 

proposal.  If S-H agrees to provide these services, then the schedule shall be reasonably adjusted to allow S-H to provide these 

services.  Compensation for such services shall be at S-H's Standard Hourly Fee Schedule in effect at the time the work is 

performed unless there is a written Amendment to Agreement that contains an alternative compensation provision. 

OWNERSHIP & REUSE OF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 
All reports, plans, specifications, field data and notes and other documents, including all documents on electronic media, prepared 

by S-H as instruments of service shall remain the property of S-H.  The CLIENT shall not reuse or make any modifications to the 

plans and specifications without the prior written authorization of S-H.  The CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 

to defend, indemnify and hold harmless S-H  its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, subconsultants and affiliated 

companies, and any of them  from any and all claims, losses, costs or damages of any nature whatsoever arising out of, resulting 

from or in any way related to any unauthorized reuse or modifications of the construction documents by the CLIENT or any person 

or entity that acquires or obtains the plans and specifications from or through the CLIENT without the written authorization of S-H. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
If a dispute arises between S-H and CLIENT, the executives of the parties having authority to resolve the dispute shall meet within 

thirty (30) days of the notification of the dispute to resolve the dispute.  If the dispute is not resolved within such thirty (30) day time 

period, CLIENT and S-H agree to submit to non-binding mediation prior to commencement of any litigation and that non-binding 

mediation is a precondition to any litigation.  Any costs incurred directly for a mediator, shall be shared equally between the parties 

involved in the mediation. 

EXCUSABLE EVENTS 
S-H shall not be responsible for any event or circumstance that is beyond the reasonable control of S-H that has a demonstrable 

and adverse effect on S-H’s ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement or S-H’s cost and expense of performing its 

obligations under this Agreement (an “Excusable Event”), including without limitation,  a change in law or applicable standards, 

actions or inactions by a governmental authority, the presence or encounter of hazardous or toxic materials on the Project, war 

(declared or undeclared) or other armed conflict, terrorism, sabotage, vandalism, riot or other civil disturbance, blockade or 

embargos, explosion, epidemic, quarantine, strike, lockout, work slowdown or stoppage, accident, act of God, failure of any 

governmental or other regulatory authority to act in a timely manner, unexcused act or omission by CLIENT or contractors of any 

level  (including, without limitation, failure of the CLIENT to furnish timely information or approve or disapprove of S-H's services or 

work product promptly, delays in the work caused by CLIENT, CLIENT’s suspension, breach or default of this Agreement, or 

delays caused by faulty performance by the CLIENT or by contractors of any level).  When an Excusable Event occurs, the 

CLIENT agrees S-H is not responsible for damages, nor shall S-H be deemed to be in default of this Agreement, and S-H shall be 



Page 4 of 4 

Copyright © Shive-Hattery March 2016 
 

 

entitled to a change order to equitably adjust for S-H’s increased time and/or cost to perform its services due to the Excusable 

Event. 

ASSIGNMENT 
No party to this Agreement shall transfer, sublet or assign any rights under or interest in this Agreement (including but not limited 

to monies that are due or monies that may be due) without the prior written consent of the other party. 

SEVERABILITY, SURVIVAL AND WAIVER 
Any provision of this Agreement later held to be unenforceable for any reason shall be deemed void, and all remaining provisions 

shall continue in full force and effect.  All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all provisions of this 

Agreement allocating responsibility or liability between the CLIENT and S-H shall survive the completion of the services hereunder 

and the termination of this Agreement.  The failure of a party to insist upon strict compliance of any term hereof shall not constitute 

a waiver by that party of its rights to insist upon strict compliance at a subsequent date. 

GOVERNING LAW 
This Agreement shall be governed pursuant to the laws in the state of the locale of the S-H office address written in this 

Agreement. 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
It is the policy of S-H to provide equal employment opportunities for all. S-H enforces the following acts and amendments as 

presented by  Federal  government or State governments: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1965, Age Discrimination in 

Employment ACT (ADEA), Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965, and Illinois Human Rights Act [ 

775ILCS 5].  S-H will not discriminate against any employee or applicant because of race, creed, color, religion, sex, national 

origin, gender identity, sexual orientation, marital status,  ancestry, veteran status, or physical or mental handicap, unless related 

to performance of the job with or without accommodation. 

COMPLETE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement constitutes the entire and integrated agreement between the CLIENT and S-H and supersedes all prior 

negotiations, representations and agreements, whether oral or written.  If the CLIENT issues a Purchase Order of which this 

Agreement becomes a part, the terms of this Agreement shall take precedence in the event of a conflict of terms. 

SIGNATURES 
Original, facsimile, or electronic signatures by the parties are deemed acceptable for binding the parties to the 
Agreement. The CLIENT representative signing this Agreement warrants that he or she is authorized to enter into 
this Agreement on behalf of the CLIENT. 
 
 

 



SCALE: NO SCALE

NORTH LIBERTY BRINE PRODUCTION & WATER DEPARTMENT
VEHICLE STORAGE FACILITY  JULY 20, 2016

blgotwa
Text Box
     NORTH LIBERTY BRINE PRODUCTION AND WATER EQUIPMENT AND         MAINTENANCE FACILITY                                                     JULY 20, 2016

blgotwa
Text Box
PROPOSED BRINE PRODUCTION AND WATER EQUIPMENT AND MAINTENANCE FACILITY



N
O

R
TH

 L
IB

ER
TY

 B
R

IN
E 

PR
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 &
 W

A
TE

R
 D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

VE
H

IC
LE

 S
TO

R
A

G
E 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y 
   

JU
LY

 2
0,

 2
01

6

blgotwa
Text Box
     NORTH LIBERTY BRINE PRODUCTION AND WATER EQUIPMENT AND MAINTENANCE FACILITY                          JULY 20, 2016



# ITEM
PROJECT BASE BID                                     

(6-BAY Building) 68'Wx65'Lx20'H

PROJECT INCLUDING                           

ADD ALTERNATE NO. 1*                          

(8-BAY Building) 68'Wx84'Lx20'H

1 Sitework $270,960 $282,772

2 Base Building Insulated shell $104,750 $124,656

3 Brine Addition Insulated shell (1536 sf) $54,600 $54,600

4 Hardened Slab for Base + Brine @ $8/sf $49,938 $60,883

5 Sectional Doors Base + Brine (Doors @ $5,000 ea) $36,750 $46,350

6 Mechanical System $94,500 $94,500

7 Electrical @ $12/sf $74,907 $91,324

8 Brinemaking Equipment $60,000 $60,000

9 Storage tanks and containment $10,500 $10,500

10 Masonry/Gypsum partition between Brine & Garage $12,600 $12,600

11 Bollards @ $500 ea $7,350 $9,450

12 Soil Stabilization @ $10/sy $8,400 $8,820

Subtotal $785,255 $856,455

Contingency (15%) $117,788 $128,468

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION $903,043 $984,923

DESIGN/BIDDING/CACO $135,456 $147,738

TOTAL $1,038,500 $1,132,662

*ADD ALTERNATE NO. 1 = 2 ADDITIONAL BUILDING BAYS

**TOTAL PROJECT COSTS AND CONSTRUCTION COSTS PROVIDED HEREIN ARE MADE ON THE BASIS OF ARCHITECT'S EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS AND REPRESENT THE ARCHITECT'S BEST 

JUDGMENT.  HOWEVER, THE ARCHITECT CANNOT AND DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT BIDS OR ACTUAL TOTAL PROJECT OR CONSTRUCTION COSTS WILL NOT VARY FROM THE ESTIMATE OF 

PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST.  THIS ESTIMATE IS INTENDED TO ASSIST IN BUDGETARY ASSESSMENT AND DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ACTUAL PROJECT COSTS WILL NOT EXCEED OR BE 

LOWER THAN THE AMOUNTS STATED IN THIS ESTIMATE.

NORTH LIBERTY BRINE PRODUCTION AND WATER EQUIPMENT AND MAINTENANCE FACILITY

CONCEPT PHASE COST OPINION 

Project #116164P   |   July 20, 2016
North Liberty Brine Production and Water Equipment and Maintence Facility

7/21/2016 2:57 PM



 

 
 

SRF Water Revenue Loan 
and Disbursement 

Agreement 
 



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-78 
Page 1 

(Hearing) 

421033-57 

North Liberty, Iowa 

August 9, 2016 

 A meeting of the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, was held on August 9, 2016, at 
6:300 p.m. at the City Hall, North Liberty, Iowa.   

The meeting was called to order by the Mayor, and the roll was called showing the 
following Council Members present and absent: 

Present:    

Absent:   . 

This being the time and place specified for holding the public hearing and taking 
action on the proposal to enter into a Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement, 
the City Clerk announced that no written objections had been placed on file.  Whereupon, 
the Mayor called for any written or oral objections, and there being none, the Mayor 
declared the public hearing closed. 

After due consideration and discussion, Council Member _________________ introduced 
the following resolution and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member 
___________________.  The Mayor put the question upon the adoption of said resolution, and the 
roll being called, the following Council Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:   . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set out. 



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-78 
Page 2 

Resolution No. 2016-78 

RESOLUTION TAKING ADDITIONAL ACTION ON PROPOSAL TO ENTER 
INTO A WATER REVENUE LOAN AND DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AND 
TO BORROW MONEY THEREUNDER IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $23,000,000 

WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty (the “City”), in Johnson County, State of Iowa, 
did heretofore establish a Municipal Waterworks System (the “Utility”) in and for the City 
which has continuously supplied water and water service in and to the City and its 
inhabitants since its establishment; and 

WHEREAS, the management and control of the Utility are vested in the City Council 
(the “Council”) and no board of trustees exists for this purpose; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a prior resolution of the Council, the City has heretofore 
issued its Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2008D, dated September 15, 2008 (the “Series 
2008 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of $2,350,000, a portion of which remain 
outstanding; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a prior resolution of the Council, the City has heretofore 
issued its Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012C, dated November 12, 2012 (the 
“Series 2012 Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $1,575,000, a portion of which 
remain outstanding; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a prior resolution of the Council, the City has heretofore 
issued its Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014B, dated April 23, 2014 (the “Series 
2014 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of $1,210,000, a portion of which remain 
outstanding; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to, and subject to the conditions of, the resolutions (the 
“Outstanding Bond Resolutions”) authorizing the issuance of the Series 2008 Bonds, the 
Series 2012 Bonds and the Series 2014 Bonds (hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
“Outstanding Bonds”), the City reserved the right to issue additional obligations payable 
from the net revenues of the Utility and ranking on a parity with the Outstanding Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore proposed to contract indebtedness and enter 
into a certain Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement in a principal amount not 
to exceed $23,000,000 (the “Agreement”) with the Iowa Finance Authority, an agency and 
public instrumentality of the State of Iowa (the “Lender”), to provide funds to pay a portion 
of the cost, to that extent, of planning, designing and constructing improvements and 
extensions to the Utility (the “Project”), and has published notice of the proposed action 
and has held a hearing thereon on August 9, 2016; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa, as follows: 



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-78 
Page 3 

Section 1. The City Council hereby determines to enter into the Agreement in the 
future and orders that Water Revenue Bonds be issued at such time in evidence thereof.  
The Council further declares that this resolution constitutes the “additional action” 
required by Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa. 

Section 2. Further action with respect to the Agreement is hereby adjourned to 
the City Council meeting on August 23, 2016. 

Section 3. All resolutions and orders or parts thereof in conflict with the 
provisions of this resolution, to the extent of such conflict, are hereby repealed. 

Section 4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR    TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

 

  



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-78 
Page 4 

• • • • 

On motion and vote, the meeting adjourned. 

 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR    TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
  



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-78 
Page 5 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF JOHNSON  SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the City Council relating to 
the hearing on the City Council’s intention to enter into a Water Revenue Loan and 
Disbursement Agreement in a principal amount not to exceed $23,000,000. 

WITNESS MY HAND this ____ day of ______________, 2016. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

 



 

 
 

Water System 
Improvements, Phase 1 

 



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-79 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2016-79 
 
RESOLUTION FINALLY APPROVING AND CONFIRMING PLANS, 
SPECIFICATIONS, FORM OF CONTRACT AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR 
THE PHASE 1 WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, DIVISION I – 
WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, has heretofore given 

preliminary approval to the plans, specifications, form of contract and estimate of cost (the 
“Contract Documents”) for the proposed Phase 1 Water System Improvements Project, 
Division I – Water Treatment Plant (the “Project”), as described in the notice of hearing on 
the Contract Documents for the Project and the taking of bids therefor; and 

WHEREAS, a hearing has been held on the Contract Documents on August 8, 2016; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby delegates to the City Clerk and/or the 
Project Engineer the duty of receiving bids for the Project until 10:00 o’clock a.m. on 
August 16, 2016 at the City Administration Building in the City.  At such time and 
place the City Clerk and/or the Project Engineer open such bids received and 
announce the results thereof.  The City Council will consider bids received at the City 
Council meeting to be held on August 23, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. at City Council 
Chambers in the City. 

Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of 
the hearing and taking of bids by publication of such notice in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City, which publication shall be made not less than 4 and not more 
than 45 days prior to the date for receipt of bids and not less than 4 and not more than 
20 days prior to the date of the said hearing.  The said notice shall be in the form 
substantially as attached to this resolution. 

Section 3. “Pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Income Tax Regulations (the 
“Regulations”) of the Internal Revenue Service, the City declares (a) that it intends to 
undertake the Project, (b) that other than (i) expenditures to be paid or reimbursed 
from sources other than the issuance of bonds, notes or other obligations (the 
“Bonds”), or (ii) expenditures made not earlier than 60 days prior to the date of this 
Resolution or a previous intent resolution of the City, or (iii) expenditures amounting 
to the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of the Bonds, or (iv) expenditures 
constituting preliminary expenditures as defined in Section 1.150-2(f)(2) of the 
Regulations, no expenditures for the Project have heretofore been made by the City 
and no expenditures will be made by the City until after the date of this Resolution or 
a prior intent resolution of the City, and (c) that the City reasonably expects to 
reimburse the expenditures made for costs of the City out of the proceeds of the 
Bonds.  This declaration is a declaration of official intent adopted pursuant to 
Section 1.150-2 of the Regulations. 



North Liberty – 2016  Resolution Number 2016-79 
Page 2 

 

Section 4. The Contract Documents referred to in the preamble hereof are hereby 
finally approved, and the prior action of the City Council giving preliminary 
approval is hereby finally confirmed, and the Project, as provided for in the Contract 
Documents, is necessary and desirable. 

Section 5. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR    TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Smaller Lot Single Family 
Zoning Ordinance 

 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 1 

Ordinance No. 2016-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY UPDATING CHAPTER 168 ZONING CODE – RS 
ZONES – SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICTS, CHAPTER 169 
ZONING CODE – DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND CHAPTER 
165 ZONING CODE - ADMINISTRATIVE TO ADD LANGUAGE 
REGARDING A SMALLER LOT SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT, 
CALLED RS-9 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2016) is hereby 
amended by revising Section 168.02 to read as follows: 
 

168.02    RS ZONES – SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

1. Defined.  Allowable RS Zone uses are: 

A. RS-3 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-3 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide and maintain low-density single-family residential 
neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 15,000 square feet.  The district shall 
include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, 
churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to 
allowable home occupations. 

B. RS-4 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-4 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide and maintain low-density single-family residential 
neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet.  The district shall 
include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, 
churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to 
allowable home occupations. 

C. RS-6 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-6 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain moderate density single-family 
residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 7,000 square feet.  The district 
shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are 
limited to allowable home occupations. 

D. RS-7 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-7 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-
family residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet.  The 
district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, 
libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 2 

these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses 
are limited to allowable home occupations.   

(1) The following conditions are required for a development consisting 
solely of RS-7 zoning:  

(a) Planned Area Development submittal. 

(b) A variety of housing designs are required.  A Planning 
Commission subcommittee will be created to review all elevations of 
proposed home design before building permits are issued.  If the 
subcommittee does not approve of an elevation, the applicant may 
appeal to the Commission for final approval. 

(c) Alleys are preferred.  A homeowners association will be 
responsible for maintenance of alleys. 

(d) Two-stall garages will be required for every lot within the 
RS-7 District. 

(e) One two-inch caliper tree will be required in the front yard of 
each lot within the RS-7 District. 

(f) A minimum of 25 percent of the development will be 
reserved as open space. 

(2) The following conditions are required for a development consisting 
of RS-7 combined with other RS zoning: 

(a) A maximum of 10 percent of the area of the Single-Family 
Residential District may be zoned RS-7.  The development must be a 
minimum of 40 acres for the inclusion of the RS-7 Zoning. 

(b) It is preferred to have a transition of RS-6 Single-Family 
Residential District adjoining the RS-7 zoned lots to serve as a buffer 
between RS-3 and RS-4 zoned lots. 

E. RS-8 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-8 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-
family residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet.  The 
district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, 
libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect 
these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses 
are limited to allowable home occupations.  The use of the RS-8, Single-Family 
Residence District shall be limited to the existing RS-8 Zones within the City, 
primarily designated as the original town of North Liberty bounded by Zeller Street, 
Dubuque Street, Penn Street, and Stewart Street.  The use of the RS-8 Zoning District 
for any new development within the City is discouraged as being incompatible with 
the desired design standards for the City. 

F. RS-9 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-9 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain high-density single-family 
residential neighborhoods with a minimum size of 4,500 square feet. The district 
shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 

Comment [DW1]: 4,500 square feet is equivalent 
to the size required for each half of an RD-10 
duplex. 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 3 

residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are 
limited to allowable home occupations. 

G. RS-O, Single-Family Residential Special Use District.  The RS-O, Single-Family 
Residential Special Use District is intended to be limited in use and will only be used 
for those special situations where the establishment of this district will not alter the 
essential character of any residential district in which it could be placed, and will, in 
addition, require that any land owner desiring to establish this district shall enter 
into a written agreement with the City to abide by such terms and conditions as 
required by the City. 

(1) Use Regulations.  An existing single-family dwelling in the RS-O 
District will be permitted to be used as a professional office in said dwelling. 

(2) Written Agreement.  An applicant shall enter into a written 
agreement with the City agreeing to abide by any restrictions or conditions 
set forth by the Council as a condition of the rezoning, including: 

(a) No more than seven full-time employees will be allowed on 
said premises, including the owner, during normal working hours. 

(b) Adequate off-street parking for each employee, up to a 
maximum of seven parking places, shall be provided.  All employees 
shall park in designated off-street parking spaces. 

(c) There shall be no exterior display, no exterior sign, and no 
exterior storage of materials which would indicate the nature of the 
use of the dwelling. 

(d) There will be no walk-in or retail business conducted on the 
premises. 

(e) The use will be subject to an annual inspection and renewal 
by the City. 

(f) The dwelling will maintain a residential character both on 
the interior and exterior. 

(g) At such time as the business use terminates in the premises 
or ceases to be used as a business use for six months in any 12-
month period, the owner will consent to the City’s rezoning the 
property for residential use only. 

2. RS Use Regulations.  Principal and accessory uses permitted in the RS Zone District 
shall be prescribed in Table 168.02-A. 

3. Bulk Regulations.  The minimum area, setback, density, and maximum height 
requirements shall be as prescribed in the following Tables:  

RS-3 Table 168.02-B  
RS-4 Table 168.02-C 
RS-6 Table 168.02-D 
RS-7 Table 168.02-E 
RS-8 Table 168.02-F 
RS-9 Table 168.02-G 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 4 

4. Accessory Uses.  Accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Section 
169.06. 

5. Home Occupations.  Home occupations are permitted subject to the provisions of 
Section 170.01. 

6. Off-Street Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided according to the provisions 
of Section 169.01. 

7. Signs.  Signs shall be permitted according to the provisions of Chapter 173. 

 

TABLE 168.02-A – RS ZONES USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 
Land Uses  Notes 

Community Buildings P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Country Clubs P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 

Dog Runs, Keeping of Small Animals A See Section 169.06 

Emergency Shelters A  

Family Homes P Minimum separation of ¼ mile between family 
homes. 

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See Section 
169.06 of this code. 

Garden Houses A See Section 169.06 

Golf Courses P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 

Group Daycare Homes P Subject to annual licensing. See specific code section. 

Home Occupations A  

Home Occupation Daycares P Subject to issuance of a zoning certificate.  See 
specific code section. 

Parks P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not Commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no boarding 

Places of Worship P  

Playgrounds P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Pre-School C Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of open 
play space per child 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Greenhouses / Plant Nurseries A See Section 169.01 

Private Swimming Pools A  



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 5 

Public Schools P  

Single-Family Dwellings P Minimum structure width 20 feet; minimum roof 
pitch 4:12 

Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction Buildings A  

Tennis Courts P  

Utility and Service Uses P  

 

TABLE 168.02-B – RS-3 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 50 feet 100 feet 15,000 

square feet 25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

100 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 feet 15,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 
 
 
 

TABLE 168.02-C – RS-4 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 40 feet 80 feet 10,000 

square feet 25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 6 

 
TABLE 168.02-D – RS-6 BULK REGULATIONS 

 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 70 feet 7,000 

square feet 25 feet 8 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 30 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-E – RS-7 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 60 feet 6,000 

square feet 20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-F – RS-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 60 feet 5,000 

square feet 20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 7 

Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-G – RS-9 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 40 feet 4,500 

square feet 25 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

 

 

169.12    DESIGN STANDARDS.  This section is intended to provide consistent high-quality general 
design standards for the community. 

2. Requirements for Development in Single- and Two-Family Residential Zoning 
Districts.  In addition to requirements of subsection 1 above, the following requirements shall be 
observed for development in single-family and two-family zoning districts: 

A. The main roof shall have a pitch with no less than four inches of rise for each 
one foot of horizontal run.   

B. The main roof shall overhang the walls a minimum of 12 inches at the eaves.   

C. Metal roofs are required to meet standards found in the International 
Residential Code adopted by the City, and are not to have a corrugated appearance 
similar to industrial or agricultural metal buildings. 

D. For exterior walls not composed of masonry products, wall coverings shall 
be wood and/or vertical or horizontal grooved siding or lapped siding, or materials 
of similar appearance. 

Comment [DW2]: •Width requirement is same 
as half of an RD-10 lot. 
•Area is half of an RD-10 lot.  
•Front yard is same as RD-10 and consistent with all 
other single-family zones except RS-8.  
•Side yards of 5 feet each would total the same area 
for RD-10 lots: RD-10 requirement is 10’ side yards, 
but that is for each side of a duplex building – each 2 
RS-9 homes would have the same area. 
•Rear yard requirement is consistent with RS-7 and 
RS-8 zones but 5’ less than RD-10. 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 8 

E. No two single-family and no two two-family front elevations may be 
identical within any group of four contiguous lots. Also, see section 165.04 (3)A 
regarding additional requirements for the RS-9 district. 

F. Corner side yard treatment must include at least one of the following: 

(1) 25% masonry covering the corner side yard exterior wall. 

(2) 2 trees, not less than 2″ caliper, to be planted in the corner side yard 
prior to issuance of any permanent occupancy permit. Existing trees in the 
corner side yard of a site may satisfy this requirement. 

(3) Architectural relief on the corner side yard exterior wall elevation 
such that the wall contains more than 2 offsets, which may consist of wall 
corners, bay or bowed windows, or other means approved by the Building 
Official. 

 

 

165.04    PERMIT REQUIREMENTS. 

3. Site Plans Required. 

A. Site plans are required for all new property development or redevelopment. 
All such site plans except those for stand-alone single-family homes and zero-lot 
duplex homes shall be reviewed by the Commission and approved by the Council. 
Single-family and zero-lot site plans are reviewed for code conformance and 
approved by the City Building Official, except for site plans for homes in the RS-9 
district. In the RS-9 district, the lots are small and design considerations are critical; 
therefore, all building elevations shall be submitted to the City Planner for review 
and approval prior to issuance of a building permit. Said review is intended to 
ensure that identical or near-identical homes are not built throughout an RS-9 area.   

 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on July 12, 2016. 
Second reading on August 1, 2016. 
Third and final reading on ____________________. 
 
 
 

Comment [DW3]: New language based on 
Council comments at public hearing. 
 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 9 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:   ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2016-10 in the North Liberty 
Leader on the ___ day of _____, 2016.   
 
_________________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 1 

Ordinance No. 2016-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY UPDATING CHAPTER 168 ZONING CODE – RS 
ZONES – SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICTS, CHAPTER 169 
ZONING CODE – DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND CHAPTER 
165 ZONING CODE - ADMINISTRATIVE TO ADD LANGUAGE 
REGARDING A SMALLER LOT SINGLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT, 
CALLED RS-9 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2016) is hereby 
amended by revising Section 168.02 to read as follows: 
 

168.02    RS ZONES – SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

1. Defined.  Allowable RS Zone uses are: 

A. RS-3 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-3 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide and maintain low-density single-family residential 
neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 15,000 square feet.  The district shall 
include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, 
churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to 
allowable home occupations. 

B. RS-4 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-4 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide and maintain low-density single-family residential 
neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet.  The district shall 
include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, schools, 
churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these residential 
areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are limited to 
allowable home occupations. 

C. RS-6 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-6 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain moderate density single-family 
residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 7,000 square feet.  The district 
shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 
residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are 
limited to allowable home occupations. 

D. RS-7 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-7 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-
family residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet.  The 
district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, 
libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 2 

these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses 
are limited to allowable home occupations.   

(1) The following conditions are required for a development consisting 
solely of RS-7 zoning:  

(a) Planned Area Development submittal. 

(b) A variety of housing designs are required.  A Planning 
Commission subcommittee will be created to review all elevations of 
proposed home design before building permits are issued.  If the 
subcommittee does not approve of an elevation, the applicant may 
appeal to the Commission for final approval. 

(c) Alleys are preferred.  A homeowners association will be 
responsible for maintenance of alleys. 

(d) Two-stall garages will be required for every lot within the 
RS-7 District. 

(e) One two-inch caliper tree will be required in the front yard of 
each lot within the RS-7 District. 

(f) A minimum of 25 percent of the development will be 
reserved as open space. 

(2) The following conditions are required for a development consisting 
of RS-7 combined with other RS zoning: 

(a) A maximum of 10 percent of the area of the Single-Family 
Residential District may be zoned RS-7.  The development must be a 
minimum of 40 acres for the inclusion of the RS-7 Zoning. 

(b) It is preferred to have a transition of RS-6 Single-Family 
Residential District adjoining the RS-7 zoned lots to serve as a buffer 
between RS-3 and RS-4 zoned lots. 

E. RS-8 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-8 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain moderate to high-density single-
family residential neighborhoods with a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet.  The 
district shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, 
libraries, schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect 
these residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses 
are limited to allowable home occupations.  The use of the RS-8, Single-Family 
Residence District shall be limited to the existing RS-8 Zones within the City, 
primarily designated as the original town of North Liberty bounded by Zeller Street, 
Dubuque Street, Penn Street, and Stewart Street.  The use of the RS-8 Zoning District 
for any new development within the City is discouraged as being incompatible with 
the desired design standards for the City. 

F. RS-9 Single-Family Residence District.  The RS-9 Single-Family Residence 
District is intended to provide for and maintain high-density single-family 
residential neighborhoods with a minimum size of 4,500 square feet. The district 
shall include appropriate neighborhood facilities such as public parks, libraries, 
schools, churches, and recreational facilities, and is intended to protect these 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 3 

residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses.  Commercial uses are 
limited to allowable home occupations. 

G. RS-O, Single-Family Residential Special Use District.  The RS-O, Single-Family 
Residential Special Use District is intended to be limited in use and will only be used 
for those special situations where the establishment of this district will not alter the 
essential character of any residential district in which it could be placed, and will, in 
addition, require that any land owner desiring to establish this district shall enter 
into a written agreement with the City to abide by such terms and conditions as 
required by the City. 

(1) Use Regulations.  An existing single-family dwelling in the RS-O 
District will be permitted to be used as a professional office in said dwelling. 

(2) Written Agreement.  An applicant shall enter into a written 
agreement with the City agreeing to abide by any restrictions or conditions 
set forth by the Council as a condition of the rezoning, including: 

(a) No more than seven full-time employees will be allowed on 
said premises, including the owner, during normal working hours. 

(b) Adequate off-street parking for each employee, up to a 
maximum of seven parking places, shall be provided.  All employees 
shall park in designated off-street parking spaces. 

(c) There shall be no exterior display, no exterior sign, and no 
exterior storage of materials which would indicate the nature of the 
use of the dwelling. 

(d) There will be no walk-in or retail business conducted on the 
premises. 

(e) The use will be subject to an annual inspection and renewal 
by the City. 

(f) The dwelling will maintain a residential character both on 
the interior and exterior. 

(g) At such time as the business use terminates in the premises 
or ceases to be used as a business use for six months in any 12-
month period, the owner will consent to the City’s rezoning the 
property for residential use only. 

2. RS Use Regulations.  Principal and accessory uses permitted in the RS Zone District 
shall be prescribed in Table 168.02-A. 

3. Bulk Regulations.  The minimum area, setback, density, and maximum height 
requirements shall be as prescribed in the following Tables:  

RS-3 Table 168.02-B  
RS-4 Table 168.02-C 
RS-6 Table 168.02-D 
RS-7 Table 168.02-E 
RS-8 Table 168.02-F 
RS-9 Table 168.02-G 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 4 

4. Accessory Uses.  Accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Section 
169.06. 

5. Home Occupations.  Home occupations are permitted subject to the provisions of 
Section 170.01. 

6. Off-Street Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided according to the provisions 
of Section 169.01. 

7. Signs.  Signs shall be permitted according to the provisions of Chapter 173. 

 

TABLE 168.02-A – RS ZONES USES 

P = Permitted, C = Conditional, A = Accessory, N = Not Allowed 
Land Uses  Notes 

Community Buildings P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Country Clubs P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 

Dog Runs, Keeping of Small Animals A See Section 169.06 

Emergency Shelters A  

Family Homes P Minimum separation of ¼ mile between family 
homes. 

Food Pantry C Only if accessory to places of worship. See Section 
169.06 of this code. 

Garden Houses A See Section 169.06 

Golf Courses P 
Except miniature golf courses and commercial 
driving ranges.  No parking allowed in required 
front yard. 

Group Daycare Homes P Subject to annual licensing. See specific code section. 

Home Occupations A  

Home Occupation Daycares P Subject to issuance of a zoning certificate.  See 
specific code section. 

Parks P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not Commercial. 

Parochial or Private Schools P Curricula similar to public schools; no boarding 

Places of Worship P  

Playgrounds P Owned or operated by public or private agencies or 
organizations.  Not commercial. 

Pre-School C Must provide a minimum of 100 square feet of open 
play space per child 

Private Garages A See Section 169.06 

Private Greenhouses / Plant Nurseries A See Section 169.01 

Private Swimming Pools A  



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 5 

Public Schools P  

Single-Family Dwellings P Minimum structure width 20 feet; minimum roof 
pitch 4:12 

Storage Shed A See Section 169.06 

Temporary Construction Buildings A  

Tennis Courts P  

Utility and Service Uses P  

 

TABLE 168.02-B – RS-3 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 50 feet 100 feet 15,000 

square feet 25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

100 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 feet 15,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 
 
 
 

TABLE 168.02-C – RS-4 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 40 feet 80 feet 10,000 

square feet 25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 50 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 6 

 
TABLE 168.02-D – RS-6 BULK REGULATIONS 

 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 70 feet 7,000 

square feet 25 feet 8 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 30 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-E – RS-7 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 60 feet 6,000 

square feet 20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-F – RS-8 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 60 feet 5,000 

square feet 20 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 7 

Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

TABLE 168.02-G – RS-9 BULK REGULATIONS 
 

Principal  
Permitted Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 
Requirement Minimum Yard Requirement 

Frontage  Width Area 
Front 
Yard 

Depth  

Each Side 
Yard 

Width  

Rear Yard 
Depth  

Maximu
m 

Height 

Single-Family Dwellings, Family 
Homes 35 feet 40 feet 4,500 

square feet 25 feet 5 feet 25 feet 35 feet or 
2½ stories 

Community Buildings, Country 
Clubs, Public, Parochial or 
Private Schools, Places of 
Worship, Nurseries, Daycare, 
Pre-School 

50 feet 100 feet 20,000 
square feet 50 feet 20 feet 50 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Tennis Courts, Parks 40 feet 100 feet 10,000 
square feet 30 feet 20 feet 30 feet 35 feet or 

2½ stories 

Golf Courses 300 feet 300 feet 65 acres NA NA NA  

 
 

 

 

169.12    DESIGN STANDARDS.  This section is intended to provide consistent high-quality general 
design standards for the community. 

2. Requirements for Development in Single- and Two-Family Residential Zoning 
Districts.  In addition to requirements of subsection 1 above, the following requirements shall be 
observed for development in single-family and two-family zoning districts: 

A. The main roof shall have a pitch with no less than four inches of rise for each 
one foot of horizontal run.   

B. The main roof shall overhang the walls a minimum of 12 inches at the eaves.   

C. Metal roofs are required to meet standards found in the International 
Residential Code adopted by the City, and are not to have a corrugated appearance 
similar to industrial or agricultural metal buildings. 

D. For exterior walls not composed of masonry products, wall coverings shall 
be wood and/or vertical or horizontal grooved siding or lapped siding, or materials 
of similar appearance. 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 8 

E. No two single-family and no two two-family front elevations may be 
identical within any group of four contiguous lots. Also, see section 165.04 (3)A 
regarding additional requirements for the RS-9 district. 

F. Corner side yard treatment must include at least one of the following: 

(1) 25% masonry covering the corner side yard exterior wall. 

(2) 2 trees, not less than 2″ caliper, to be planted in the corner side yard 
prior to issuance of any permanent occupancy permit. Existing trees in the 
corner side yard of a site may satisfy this requirement. 

(3) Architectural relief on the corner side yard exterior wall elevation 
such that the wall contains more than 2 offsets, which may consist of wall 
corners, bay or bowed windows, or other means approved by the Building 
Official. 

 

 

165.04    PERMIT REQUIREMENTS. 

3. Site Plans Required. 

A. Site plans are required for all new property development or redevelopment. 
All such site plans except those for stand-alone single-family homes and zero-lot 
duplex homes shall be reviewed by the Commission and approved by the Council. 
Single-family and zero-lot site plans are reviewed for code conformance and 
approved by the City Building Official, except for site plans for homes in the RS-9 
district. In the RS-9 district, the lots are small and design considerations are critical; 
therefore, all building elevations shall be submitted to the City Planner for review 
and approval prior to issuance of a building permit. Said review is intended to 
ensure that identical or near-identical homes are not built throughout an RS-9 area.   

 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on July 12, 2016. 
Second reading on August 1, 2016. 
Third and final reading on ____________________. 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2016  Ordinance 2016-10 
Page 9 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:   ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
AMY NIELSEN, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2016-10 in the North Liberty 
Leader on the ___ day of _____, 2016.   
 
_________________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Additional Information 
 



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
July Permit Report: 
 
Eighty-eight permits were issued in July with estimated construction value of $7,758,431.90. Seven permits 
were issued for thirty-four dwellings with a value of 5.4 million dollars and one permit for commercial project 
with a value of 1.8 million dollars.    Staff completed 410 inspections.   
 
 
 
 

 

Code Permit Purpose  Permits 
Construction 

Value 
Permit 

Fees Bldgs. Units  Notes 

1 New Single Family Dwelling 6 $1,409,770.00 $18,926.07 6 6   

2 
New Single Family Dwelling 
Attached 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0   

3 New Townhouse 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0   
4 New Multi-Family Housing 1 $3,978,720.00 $26,284.08 1 28   
5 New Commercial  1 $1,800,346.00 $12,380.01 1 11   
6 New Industrial  0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0   
7 School 0 $0.00 $0.00       
8 Residential Alteration  9 $42,325.00 $876.52       
9 Residential Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00       
10 Commercial Alteration 6 $318,826.00 $2,924.81       
11 Commercial Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00       
12 Industrial Alteration 0 $0.00 $0.00       
13 Industrial Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00       
14 Other 65 $208,444.90 $9,744.20 3     
15 Public 0 $0.00 $0.00       
  Totals  88 $7,758,431.90 $71,135.69 11 45   

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Tom Palmer, Building Official 
CC: City Administrator 

Date: 8/4/2016 
Re: Monthly Report 



 
 
 
Certificate of Occupancy: 
 
Twenty-two occupancy certificates were issued for fourteen new dwelling units, three for alterations to 
existing dwelling units and two for commercial uses. Four new businesses have applied for zoning permits to 
locate here in North Liberty. Sugapeach Chicken & Fish Fry, Brown’s School of Martial Arts, Harvey Insurance 
Agency and Iowa City Coffee Company.           
  
 
Rental/Code Enforcement: 
 
Seventeen new rental permit applications were received in July.  Sixteen rental inspections were completed 
along with fifty-two code enforcement complaints were handled in July.   
 
 
Liberty High School:  
 
The installation of the roof membrane and concrete floors will be completed by the end of August. The general 
contractor is anticipating the concrete work for the parking areas and sidewalks will be completed by end of 
September.  Photos below show the progress of the auditorium. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Water Heater

Stormwater Quality

Subdivision

Residentail Rough-in

Rental

Public Sidewalk

Plumbing Below Concrete Floor Slab

Other

Grading

Foundation Wall

Foundation Dampproffing

Erosion Non-Compliance Notice

Commercial Rough-In

1st SWPPP



 

 

 





 
  



TO: City Administrator and City Council 
FROM: Jennie Garner, Library Director  

DATE: August 4, 2016 

SUBJECT: July 2016 Library Monthly Report 
 

July At a Glance  
Door Count 18,352 
Computer Usage 3281 
Database Use 1566 
Meeting Room Use 487 

Average Daily Library Visits 

 

 

Programming, Events and News 
The North Liberty Library Board of Trustees identified an endowment as a worthy pursuit for 
our growing library a few years ago and library administration has been gathering 
information on creating a sustainable fund that would attract donors to invest in the library. 
The Friends of the Library Board agreed to act as the partnering agency for the 
establishment of an endowment with the Community Foundation of Johnson County, the 
North Liberty Friends of the Library Endowment Fund. We are very excited to be able to 
offer this mechanism for giving to our supporters. Through the Foundation, donors can take 
advantage of a 25 percent Endow Iowa Tax Credit. Creating the endowment will leverage 
our ability to increase charitable giving for the library.   
 
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

N
um

be
r o

f V
is

ito
rs

 

Sunday

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday



July was a very busy month at the library. Our summer reading programs are wrapped up 
as of the end of the month and we had over 700 people of all ages complete the respective 
programs for their age group, We are still working on the statistics so there will be more 
information coming soon.  
 
The library also hosted a variety of special family programs during the month of July 
including Dino O’Dell, a music and storytelling show, and Ben’s Bubble Show, bubble magic 
and sculpting. About 60 attended O’Dell’s program and the bubble show drew over 220.  
 
Patrons are definitely using the programs but they are also using our services. Patrons 
checked out 135,822 in FY16, an increase from 121,984 in FY15.  
 
We’ve got two great family events coming up in August. On Aug. 13, we’ll host our third 
annual summer’s end family party with a family tailgate from 11-1. The event will feature a 
bouncy house, games and food provided by the North Liberty Optimist Club. Then our 
second annual baby fair will be held on Sunday, Aug. 28, from 1-3pm. Over 30 vendors will 
be in the library introducing new and expecting parents and siblings to the many services 
offered in the Corridor for babies. Parents will have the opportunity to get free dental, vision, 
and language screenings for young children attending the event. Also new this year will be 
some mini music and yoga programs (20 minute sessions featuring some of our program 
presenters) for kids. Families with children can participate and expecting/first-time parents 
will get a glimpse  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
July Program Highlights 

 
 

Kids built colosseums at one 
weekly summer reading program, 
a fun STEM activity.  

 



 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 Parks and Recreation Commission 
 City Administrator 
 
From: Guy Goldsmith, Director of Parks, Building and Grounds  
 
Date: August 2, 2016 
 
Re:    Monthly Report 
 
 
We performed various building maintenance tasks as needed this month.   
 
We picked up trash and pet waste stations as needed this month.   
 
With the continued adequate rain fall in July a great deal of time was spent mowing 
and trimming weeds around fence lines, the bike trail, city parks and grounds and 
ponds this month. Some of the areas around our ponds have been a challenge due to 
the wet conditions.   
 
With the past heavy rain we continue to spend time cleaning out culverts under 
the trail, ponds and outflows. Much time was spent on the Fox Valley pond 
outflow. 
 
Parks Department staff spent a considerable amount of time cutting up fallen trees 
and hauling them to the parks maintenance area due to the recent strong storms we 
had in North Liberty.   
 
We have been maintaining ball fields and facilities this month as needed. We 
continue to have field rentals.   
 
We installed new park monument signs at Fox Run Neighborhood Park, Mar Lee 
Park and West Lakes Park. We received much positive feedback from the 
community. Here is one comment from a resident. “Our Park is now official”.   
 
We spent a great deal of time making preparations for the July 9th North Liberty 
Blues & BBQ annual event.  All Parks Department staff worked the event and most 
of our time was spent setting up, parking cars and cleanup afterwards.   I would like 
to thank everyone who volunteered their time and helped make this a very 
successful event this year.  
 
The splash pad project is nearing completion. System testing will be completed on 
August 3 and the grading and sod will take place soon depending on weather. Our 
goal is to have the splash pad in operation by August 5th.   
 
   
We continue to prepare for the August 15th Beaver Kreek Park playground 
installation week.  
 
   
 



North Liberty Police 
Monthly Report 

July 2016 
 
 

Training: 
 

• Officers monthly 1 hour online training topic was  
on de-escalation, flooding and the survival 
response on PLS  (22 hours) 

• Spence Madole graduated from ILEA and started 
the Field Training Process. 

• Eric Kapfer started the Cedar Rapids Regional 
Police Academy. This will go until the first week in 
November.    

• Alisha and Lauryn attended the Iowa Professional 
Administrative Assistance Conference in Oelwein 
(16 hours). 

• One taser instructor was recertified.  (8 hours) 
 
Public Relations: 
 
• Multiple officers worked the Blues and BBQ 

event.  We displayed a patrol car in the kiddie 
area and posted two officers to show off the car 
and allowed kids to fingerprint the car.  We also 
provide safety resources for parents. Several other departments inquired about Sgt Olson’s 
innovative idea to fingerprint the car.  This process was shared with several other 
departments to use for their community events. 

     
• The Chief and Officer Jennings participated as the activity at the summer lunch program.  

The dunk tank was a huge success. 
• Officers and records staff volunteered to work the summer lunch program.    
• A group of kids from Creation Kids came to the PD to drop off cookies and brownies as a 

show of appreciation. They also got a tour of the police station and of the patrol cars.    
• Several thoughts of gratitude were provided to the police department from groups, 

individuals and businesses.  A brief letter was posted to website to thank our community for 
allowing us to serve them.  We received subs and baked goods all month long. 

• Chief met with a local resident to discuss a public forum about successful positive 
interactions with the police.  This is planned for August 21st at 6pm at the Community 
Center.  

• A 16 year old local resident, who is interested in policing, shadowed the Chief for half a day 
• 4 Safety car seat checks were conducted.  This is by appointment only and people can 

contact tclubb@northlibertyiowa.org to schedule the check.  One seat takes about an hour.   

  
Traffic Contacts 491 

Parking Contacts 38 
Vehicle Inspections 26 

Vehicle Unlocks 30 
Crash Investigations 22 

Public Assists 98 
Assist Other Agency 82 

    Crimes Against Persons Report 6 
      Crimes Against Property Report 23 
                                   Other Reports 29 
                                              Arrests 27 
                                           Warrants  2 

Alcohol/Narcotics Charges 20 
Crimes Against Persons Charges 2 
Crimes Against Property Charges 2 

Other Charges 12 
Animal Calls 47 

Total Calls for Service 1955 
*Total Calls for Service for the year 11388 

mailto:tclubb@northlibertyiowa.org


 
 
 
North Liberty Police Monthly Report Continuation --- July 2016 

 

 
Equipment:                                                                                                       
 
• A new car was acquired to replace an unmarked vehicle.    
• Three tasers from 2007 and 2009 were sold to a smaller agency (Dallas-Melcher) because 

they could not get replacement parts for their inventory.  These tasers were outdated from 
the buy-back program we have used when we purchased new tasers.  We were glad to help 
out another agency.  

• Medical equipment was inventoried and replaced for the department.  These are the items 
that are carried in the patrol cars.   

 
Enforcement: 
 
• Officers were dispatched to 26 fireworks complaints around the 4th of July in town.  
• Investigator continued the investigation and follow up for the murder for hire plot.  
• Officers responded to 4 vehicle burglaries earlier month. We are working on getting 

evidence to the DCI crime lab for the verification of the possible suspect.   
• Another suspect was located and charged with vehicle and residential burglaries.  His mode 

of access was through unlocked/opened garages and unlocked vehicles.   
• Several bikes were reported stolen this month. 
• We want to encourage everyone to lock their homes, vehicles and bikes to prevent thieves 

having easy access to the property.   
• We worked GTSB traffic enforcement projects over the first two weekends in July focusing 

on traffic enforcement and impaired drivers. 
 

Department Admin:     
 
• Two officers (Miller and Sammons) receive letters of commendation for their patience, 

professionalism and actions during a disturbance call.  It was clear the individual was 
suffering from a mental health crisis.  Both officers showed great restraint, even while being 
assaulted.  

• Labor Management Committee meeting was held with Union Representatives and 
Command Staff to discuss information sharing, communication and internal operations.    

• The results of the internal survey were completed and published to all officers and 
supervisors. This was also discussed with each rotation.  The biggest issue is with 
communication across the 4 separate 12 hour shifts. We will be experimenting with a digital 
briefing board to help keep officers informed instead of the handwritten log.  Supervisors will 
be responsible for updating the log daily.   

• Public posting for the lieutenant position was made available to the current supervisors, with 
a deadline to complete their packet the first week of next month.  

• The union members timekeeping was switched over to the city pay period in our scheduling 
software. 

• An exercise incentive program was started for staff to complete the pre-employment 
physical testing.  If they complete the testing for the four categories, at the age bracket 
below their level, they get an extra 2 hours of overtime/comp time. This will be conducted 
twice a year and is voluntary for staff to participate.  We had 5 officers participate on two 
separated dates and successfully passed the age bracket below their age limit.   

• The Calls for Service have been the highest month all year at 1955.  This was also higher 
than any month in 2015.  Calls for service are logged anytime an officer calls dispatch or 
anytime a call is made to dispatch requesting an officer response.   

•  Officer Brue Sexton completed the Field Training Program and is assigned to solo patrol. 
 
Respectfully Submitted by Chief Diane Venenga and Alisha Ruffcorn 8/3/2016 



To: Mayor, City Council and City Administrator 
From: Shelly Simpson, Recreation Director 
Date: August 3, 2016 
 

Monthly Report – July 2016 
 
Recreation Update: 
 
“Kids Campsite” usage for this month, AM session = 646 and PM session = 641; totaling 1,287 participants.  
 
Summer Camp, Knight Riders, Summer Lunch Program and Library Summer Reading and Outdoor Pool usage continues 
for another month making our facility a busy place. Youth tennis lessons continued outside and other city staff were 
busy and did an excellent job with Blues & BBQ. I chose to attend the Adele concert in Chicago, missing this great 
community event. Hopefully I can help out next year.  
 
Noah Greene filled our open position of Administrative Assistant and began July 18, 2016. 
 
The summer months bring many family vacations so we continue to make sure things are covered as staff requests time 
off. 
 
   
Pool Update: 
Ashley continues to do an excellent job with pool operations. She has done a great job in learning and implementing her 
touch on operations this first year. She is planning and preparing for the Youth Triathlon event.  
 
Swim lessons continued this month; totaling 455 participants for the month.  
 
We are continuing to research options for re-surfacing the indoor pool and meeting with Water’s Edge on our Aquatic 
Feasibility Study or Aquatic Master Plan.  
 
 
Submitted by Shelly Simpson 



 
To:  Park & Recreation Commission Board Members 
  Mayor, City Council and City Administrator 
From:  Shelly Simpson, Recreation Director 
Date:  August 1, 2016 
Re:  Monthly Report – July 2016 
 

Program Summaries – July         
Swim Lessons: During the summer swim lessons are offered in mornings and in evenings. 
 Parent Tot:  This session had 47 participants. 
 Tadpoles:  This session had 59 participants. 
 Level 1:   This session had 63 participants.  

Level 2:   This session had 59 participants. 
Level 3:   This session had 54 participants. 
Level 4:   This session had 42 participants. 
Level 5:     This session had 47 participants. 
Level 6:   This session had 29 participants. 
Private Lessons: Tuesdays This session had 27 participants. 

Thursdays This session had 28 participants. 
Totaling 455 participants learning to swim this month. 
Private (Open) Lessons: $ 684.00 collected this month. 
     

Pool Programs:   
 Water Fitness:  Early Bird Aqua Aerobics:  3 participants, plus walk-ins. 
    Easy Does It:    canceled by instructor; family emergency  
    Water Resistance AM canceled by instructor; family emergency   
    Aqua Boot Camp:  2 participants, plus walk-ins.  
    Arthritis Foundation Aqua: 3 participants, plus walk-ins. 
    Noodle Triathlon Workout Walk-ins only. 
 
Preschool:   

Kids Campsite:  AM session = 646; PM session = 641; totaling 1,287 participants. 
Lucky Duck:  This session $ 37.00 collected 

 
Youth Programs:   

BASP:   Summer Camp:  Jr. Counselors:  Knight Riders    
Week 5: 46 participants 3 participants  8 participants 
 Week 6: 51 participants  5 participants  4 participants 
Week 7: 51 participants 3 participants  5 participants 
Week 8: 52 participants 4 participants  5 participants 

 
Youth Triathlon Swim Clinic: 2 participants 

 
 
Youth Sports: 

Tae Kwon Do M/TH: no participants this month 
Tae Kwon Do T/W: 2 participants this month 
 
Youth Hockey:  July session:  

Ages 3-5 10 participants 
Ages 6-7 6 participants 
Ages 8-9  no participants 

 
 
 Tennis Lessons: July session:  Ages 5-6: 9 participants   Ages 7-8: 7 participants 

 Ages 9-10: 11 participants  Ages 11-12: 3 participants 
 



 
Adult Sports/Programs:        
 Basketball: Package $50; Drop-in $344; totals $394.00    

Pickleball: Package $130; Drop-in $352; totals $482.00  
 
Women’s Doubles Tennis: 15 participants 
 
Adult Basketball Leagues: League play will resume in September. 
Co-ed Volleyball Leagues: League play will resume in September.  
 
   

Adult Fitness:  
 Cardio Pump:  5 participants, plus walk-ins. 

Kickboxing PM:   2 participants, plus walk-ins.  
Cross Fit:  not offered during summer season.  
Boot Camp/Yoga:  Walk-ins only.  
Lower Body Blast: Walk-ins only. 
Body Blast:  Walk-ins only. 
Core Fusion:  Walk-ins only. 
Glutes, Core, Flex: not offered during summer season. 
Personal Training: This month totals 

  Kris C   $-0-  
  Rachel W  $-0- 
  Denise Barnhouse $-0-  
   
 
Senior Citizens:  

Senior Dining: July 1 = 28 participants 
   July 8 = 19 participants 
   July 15 = 14 participants 
   July 22 = 18 participants 
   July 29 = 21 participants 
    
  
Special Events:   

Kayak Canoe Trip – July 30: This event was full, but had to cancel due to heat advisory.   
 

 
ActiveNet Totals: Gross Income = $ 65,267.55 
 
 
 Residency 
Breakdown          

 

July 1-31, 2016            
Package Residents  Non-residents  Total   

Track Package 38  11  49 vs. June = 53    
       

Daily Fees           
July 1-31, 2016       
Daily Weight 688  109  797 vs. June = 881  
Senior Daily Weight 214  23  237 vs. June = 215    
Sub Total 902  132  1,034 vs. June = 1,096   

Pool       
July 1-31, 2016 Adult  Youth/Seniors  Total  
Daily Fees 3,103  5,707  8,810 vs. June = 11,395 

 



To:     Mayor and City Council, and City Administrator  
From: Dan Lange, Assistant Street Superintendent 
Date:  August 4st, 2016                                                                            
Re:     July 16, Monthly Report 
 
 Minor building maintenance and shop area cleanup.   
 Ongoing maintenance of all equipment  
 Cemetery locates, water and sewer locates are ongoing.  
 Animal control calls are ongoing  
 We are cleaning storm intakes after rain events. A few rain events 

caused down tree limbs. Approx. 25 truckloads of mulch were picked 
up. 

 Staff has been patching streets, blading shoulders and gravel roads.                                  
 Ongoing monitoring of Sewer Mains / Jetting as needed.  
 Street Department staff has attended all safety meetings. 
 Attended weekly progress meetings on Penn St ICAAP project and 

North Liberty Rd Project 
 Work has started on permanent traffic signals at Alexander Way 
 Minor traffic signal maintenance. Minor equipment replacements.  
 Paint striper has been repaired and crew out painting intersections. 

 
        

 
                                                            Dan Lange 
                                                             Asst. Street Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Communications Department Report  
Submitted to the North Liberty City Council 
Aug. 3, 2016 for the month of July 2016 

Blues & BBQ 

About 15,000 guests attended on July 9, and the event went smoothly. Work this month outside 
of the event itself included TV and radio appearances, social media production, coordination, 
final preparations and clean up. Our thanks to the efforts of city staff and leaders from the 
community putting in a ton of effort to make it happen, as well as the support of community 
volunteers and sponsors. A full wrap-up report will be forthcoming following the committee’s 
meeting on Aug. 10, but in short: We’re very pleased with the 10th year of Blues & BBQ. 

Porchfest 

Jillian continues to work with organizers of Porchfest. It’s serving as an opportunity to help define 
her role and the support we can offer community events led by community members. The event is 
scheduled for Aug. 20, and more details can be found at porchfestnl.com. 

Community Events 

We’ve turned our attention to Beat the Bitter and other potential community engagement events, 
discussing some initial plans and ideas for Beat the Bitter’s second year, with plans to meet with 
community members in the coming month. 

Cablecast Server 

Stefan and Nick is installed our new Tightrope Media Server and worked with the vendor to get it 
operational. We have training scheduled on the new system and will begin to transition from our 
current TelVue server once that training is complete.  

E-cigarettes 

With a big assist from Mary Byers, we worked with Johnson County Public Health on a letter to 
local businesses to education them about the e-cigarette ordinance passed earlier this year.  

North Liberty Community Fund 

Nick worked with members of the NLCF to produce promotional materials for their awareness-
building and fundraising Grow Community Support treasure hunt, slated for September. 

Other 



We produced and submitted City Council and an MPOJC meetings to the Iowa City government 
channel.  

We completed layout of the North Liberty Community Center brochure. 

Nick attended the Iowa City/Coralville Area Convention and Visitors Bureau’s briefing on its new 
branding which will be rolled out slowly over the next several months. We’re excited to work with 
the CVB to promote travel and tourism in North Liberty under the new branding. Staff represented 
the City of North Liberty at the Iowa City Area Chamber of Commerce’s North Liberty Roundtable. 

We sent news releases on Just Tri youth triathlon, Recreation Department programming, branch 
collection and more. 

Social media  

Month Facebook  
 new likes 

Facebook  
reach (28 days) 

Twitter  
 new follows 

Twitter 
impressions 

Instagram 
 new follows 

July 2016 110 83,551 70 16,500  124 (721) 
June 2016 217 66,227 92 25,400  89 (597) 
May 2016 112 54,190 55 37,800 46 (508) 
April 2016 122 62,193 30 24,500 43 (462) 
March 2016 139 41,479 43 26,200 41 (419) 

Website Statistics (Current month and preceding 12) 
Month Sessions Users Pageviews Pages/Session Avg. Session 
June 2016 12,660 9,073 28,929 2.29 1:45 
June 2016 23,761 16,469 47,658 2.01 1:27 
May 2016 19,917 14,231 39,812 2.00 1:22 
April 2016 16,898 12,044 36,230 2.14 1:38 
March 2016 19,400 14,590 37,648 1.94 1:18 
February 2016 13,444 9,722 29,899 2.22 1:40 
January 2016 15,994 11,582 34,566 2.16 1:33 
December 2015 14,596 10,984 28,898 1.98 1:19 
November 2015  14,280 10,477 29,299 2.05 1:23 
October 2015  15,120 10,934 29,983 1.98 1:20 
September 2015  14,061 10,142 28,736 2.04 1:21 
August 2015  18,093 12,578 35,835 1.98 1:26 
July 2015  22,441 15,475 44,453 1.98 1:26 

Completed Shoots 
Title Requested By Date Shot Duration 
Planning and Zoning Commission  City Administration July 5 0:12 
Parks and Recreation Commission  City Administration July 7 0:32 
Blues & BBQ Communications July 9 0:05 
Telecommunications Commission City Administration July 11 0:15 



City Council City Administration July 12 1:52 
MPOJC City Administration July 13 0:36 
Tree and Storm Water Board City Administration July 13 0:29 
Transit Task Force City Administration July 18 0:51 
Total shoots: 8 Duration of new video: 4.9 hours 

 



 

 

City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Circle 

PO Box 77 
North Liberty, IA 52317 

 
 
 

Phone: 319-626-5738 
Fax: 319-626-5739 

northlibertyiowa.org 

 Water Pollution 
Control Plant 

Iowa 
 
TO:  City Council, Mayor and City Administrator 
 
FROM:  Dave Ramsey 
 
DATE:  August 1, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  July 2016 Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) Report 
 
 
The following items were worked on at the WPCP during the month of July: 
 
1.  All scheduled preventative maintenance at the plant and lift stations was completed.  

 
2. Staff stayed very busy with numerous operational jobs throughout the month.     

 
3. This month’s staff safety training was on hazardous communications. 

  
4. We held our 13th construction meeting on the WPCP Phase 2 expansion project.  We are 

working with the general contractor and Fox Engineering on a daily basis to keep the project 
moving forward while trying our best to minimize change orders and related costs.  Overall 
the project is going very well. 

 
5. We are working with Bowker Construction on rebuilding the sludge load out stand.  This will 

speed up the loading during hauling events. 
 

6. Bowker Construction was awarded the bid to replace the air make up unit in the pretreatment 
building.  This piece of equipment along with two exhaust fans supplies air 24/7 to provide 
fresh air where all the incoming flow is treated.  This piece of equipment has been running 
non-stop since 1998 and is completely worn out. 

 
7. Staff attended several wastewater training classes this month to not only expand their 

knowledge, but to also earn CEU’s for their operators certifications. 
 

 
Dave Ramsey 
WPCP Superintendent 



 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Greg Metternich, Water Superintendent  
 
Re: Monthly Report 
 
August 3, 2016 
 
 
We read 8,016 radio reads last month that’s an increase of 8 accounts. We had to re-read 
approximately 64 accounts.    
 
We delivered 181 shut off notices and shut off approximately 59 overdue accounts for non-
payment last month.     
 
In the month of July we treated a total of 37,890,000 gallons of water, our average daily flow 
was 1,222,000 gallons a day, and our maximum daily flow was 1,463,000 gallons. The total for 
the month was 1.29% higher than last year. We recovered 4,205,000 gallons of water from the 
ASR well last month.    
 
On July 18th one of our softeners at the water plant started releasing resin into the plumbing 
fixtures throughout the plant. We took the tank out of service and started vacuuming out the 
media, what we found at the bottom of the tank was that the underdrain system had several areas 
that had holes all the way through the steel structure and was allowing rock and resin to enter the 
finished water. I contacted Vessco the company that manufactured the tanks and started working 
on a resolution to our problem. They have a system to replace the underdrain that uses PVC pipe 
and concrete it should be here in the next few days. We should have the tank back in service by 
the 12th. Once the tank is up and running we are going to go ahead and install the same system in 
the other tank. With one softener out of service the water plant is only running at about 50% 
capacity the rest of the daily flow is being supplied by the ASR well.     
 
Maxwell Construction has finished all of the water main work on Penn Street. The last 
connection at Cameron Way was made on July 13th the main has been tested and put into service. 
We removed our temporary connection the following day.  
 
We continue to stay busy collecting curb box location information, installing new meters and 
RF’s, we’ve had several meter change outs this month.      
 
 
 
Water Superintendent 
 
Greg Metternich 



North Liberty Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 
Thursday, July 7, 2016 

Board Members Present:    Jef Farland, Jami Maxson, Scott Stahmer, Jeff Kellbach, Matthew Eckhardt, Bonnie Pitz 
Others Present:  Shelly Simpson, Guy Goldsmith, Brian Motley and Tim Hamer 
Meeting called to order: 7:00 pm 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. Approve minutes:  Minutes from May 6 meeting approved (no quorum in June). 
 

2. Board Appointments: Jef Farland reappointed; Matthew Echardt is our new member, he is a North Liberty resident and works 
for city of Iowa City as Aquatic Supervisor.  Jef Farland selected as Chair, Jeff Kellback as Vice Chair and Jami Maxson as 
secretary. 
 

3. Building and Grounds Report: Much time with mowing, especially with rain, also work on landscaping.  New trees for Fox 
Valley Pond, new concession stand up and running.  Splash pad should be done by end of August.  Rain postponed installing 
Beaver Kreek Park playground to August 15. 
 

4. Green Space Usage: Groups are using available green space without registering (non-ball fields).  These groups are charging 
for their programs, discussed whether to charge, how to police any policy.  They do benefit from park space, utilize parking, 
wear on turf, produce garbage, etc.  Also concerns re injury and responsibility for safety.  Board recommended Shelly and 
Brian work on developing a policy to charge for usage, and gain input from city attorney. 
 

5. Outdoor Pool - Opening weekend: Numbers presented in packet, comparing to past years. 
 

6. Fiscal Year End report: Summary of FY ending June 30 presented.  Biggest change is decreasing to one BASP in mid-year. 
 

7. Upcoming Events:   Canoe/Kayak Trip July 23 
           Youth Triathlon  August 7 
      
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Recreation Monthly Report:  Increase in numbers for swim lessons with both am and pm classes.   

   Free Fishing Weekend had 300 participants.  Summer Free Lunch program continuing to grow. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
        1. Next Meeting  Thursday August 4, 2016 at 7:00PM 
    Location: City Council Chambers at 1 Quail Creek Circle 
 
 Adjourned at 7:30 pm 
 
 Minutes submitted by Jami Maxson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes  

August 2, 2016 
 

Roll Call 
Chair Ronda Detlefsen called the August 2, 2016 North Liberty Planning Commission meeting to 
order.  Commission members present: Jennifer Bleil, Ronda Detlefsen, Adam Gebhart, Jason Heisler, 
Kylie Pentecost and Patrick Staber; absent: Josh Covert.  Others present: Dean Wheatley, Ryan 
Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Scott Peterson, Kevin Trom, Dan Schmidt, Carter Kurdlre, Stefan Juran and 
other interested parties.  
 
Agenda Approval 
Bleil moved, Staber seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved. 
 
Tallman Properties LC Site Plan 
Staff Presentation 
Wheatley presented the request of Tallman Properties LC to approve a site plan for a commercial-
industrial development, Alpha Graphics, on Kennel Court, Lot 1 of North Park Subdivision, west of 
965 off of 240th Street. Staff recommends approval with additional landscaping being added along 
240th Street. 
 
Applicant’s Presentation 
Dan Schmidt, Brain Engineering, was present on behalf of the applicant. He offered additional 
information on the application. 
 
Public Comments 
No public comments were offered.  
 
Questions and Comments 
The Commission discussed the proposed landscaping additions and expressed support of the 
project.   
   
Recommendation to the City Council 
Heisler moved, Gebhart seconded to recommend approval to the City Council of the site plan 
application for Kennel Court, Lot 1 of North Park Subdivision with the following conditions: 
additional landscaping along 240th Street.  The vote was: ayes – Heisler, Gebhart, Detlefsen, Bleil, 
Staber, Pentecost; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Vito’s Restaurant Conditional Use  
Staff Presentation 
Wheatley presented the request of Vito’s restaurant, located at the northwest corner of Ashley 
Court and Jordan Street, to approve a conditional use for outside eating and drinking. Staff 
recommends approval of the application with the following conditions:   

1. Permit is for this owner only (future owners would need to reapply), 



2. Alcoholic beverage sales allowed, 
3. Only low-wattage lighting to be added – no floodlighting, 
4. Amplified music levels to be agreed to in the field by the owner and City staff, and 
5. No more seats than allowed by the Building and Fire Codes for this location. 

 
Applicant’s Presentation 
No applicant presentation was offered. Tonight is the restaurant’s opening night.  
 
Public Comments 
No public comments were offered. 
 
Questions and Comments 
The Commission offered compliments on the quality of the improvements.  
 
Recommendation to the Board of Adjustment 
Pentecost moved, Bleil seconded to recommend approval of the Conditional Use application for 
Vito’s Restaurant to the Board of Adjustment with the following conditions:   
 

1. Permit is for this owner only (future owners would need to reapply), 
2. Alcoholic beverage sales allowed, 
3. Only low-wattage lighting to be added – no floodlighting, 
4. Amplified music levels to be agreed to in the field by the owner and City staff, and 
5. No more seats than allowed by the Building and Fire Codes for this location. 

The vote was: ayes – Staber, Detlefsen, Bleil, Pentecost, Gebhart, Heisler; nays – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
Approval of Previous Minutes 
Gebhart moved, Heisler seconded to approve the minutes of the July 5, 2016 Planning Commission. 
The vote was all ayes. Minutes approved.  
 
Old Business  
Wheatley reported that Tin Rooster has applied for building permit. The TIF has been finalized for 
the Family Entertainment Center.  
 
New Business 
Wheatley reported that there is one agenda item for September and one or two zoning code 
amendments.  
 
Adjournment 
At 6:44 p.m., Bleil moved, Gebhart seconded to adjourn. All ayes. Meeting adjourned.  



EDC’s Mission: To provide economic  
growth through the creation and expansion 
of high-impact Iowa businesses.

2016 Mid-Year  
Stakeholder Report



EDC July 2016  
Mid-Year Stakeholder Report
 

Dear EDC Stakeholder,

This year marks EDC’s 13th year assisting Iowa 
entrepreneurs as well as my 10th year on the EDC 
team. In my 10 years, I have seen products go from 

ideas to multi-million dollar businesses, entrepreneurs go from employing just 
themselves to employing staffs of 100 or more, and I have seen businesses sell 
or close. On a daily basis, I witness the amount of drive and discipline that it 
takes to not only launch a company but continue to scale it and turn it into viable 
enterprise that positively impacts the community in which it is based. 

I am proud of the impact that our clients 
have on our area’s economy - nearly $2B 
so far. I am grateful that they choose to 
launch and grow their businesses here 
in the Corridor, where I live and raise my 
family. It is these businesses that will 
create the opportunities for the next 
generation and make this a vibrant place 
to live and do business. 

Many of these valuable businesses will be on display at the 6th annual Innovation 
EXPO—scheduled for Wednesday, October 26th at the DoubleTree in Cedar Rapids 
(see last page of this report for more information). If you want to get a glimpse of 
the amazing things that are happening in Iowa, make sure you attend. Catch up 
with some of your favorite entrepreneurs and meet some new ones. I guarantee 
you will not be disappointed. 

We thank you for your continued support and for recognizing the impact that 
entrepreneurs have on our community and our state’s vitality.

Sincerely,

Christie Remley
Marketing Director 

2016 EDC BOARD
 
Kathleen Kleiman, Member, 
Simmons Perrine Moyer Bergman 
PLC (Chair)

Charles Rohde, President, 
King’s Material (Past Chair)

Jon Dusek, President & CEO, 
Armstrong Development

Mary Quass, President & CEO, 
NRG Media LLC

Doug Kopp, Senior Vice President, 
Alliant Energy

Larry Helling, President & CEO, 
Cedar Rapids Bank & Trust

Bruce Lehrman, CEO, 
Involta

William McCartan, Shareholder, 
Bradley & Riley PC

Dick Schwab, Owner, Iowa 
Woodworks

David Rusch, President & CEO, 
CRST International

Travis Fell, Senior Manager, 
RSM US LLP

Terry Sullivan, General Manager,  
& CEO 
Linn County REC

Patrick Deignan, President, 
Bankers Trust

Kris Gulick, President, 
Entrepreneurial Services  
Group LLC

David Hensley, Executive Director 
and Clinical Professor, 
John Pappajohn Entrepreneurial 
Center

Jasmine Almoayed, Economic 
Development Liaison, 
City of Cedar Rapids

Thad Roffey, VP Commercial 
Services, 
University of Iowa Community 
Credit Union

Jim Haddad, Haddad Consulting 
Services

Cindy Dietz, Director, External 
Relations, 
Rockwell Collins

David Conrad, Assistant 
Vice President for Economic 
Development, 
University of Iowa

319-369-4955
www.edcinc.org



July 2016 – In the first six months of 2016:

Active Clients

So far, in 2016, EDC has attracted 10 
new clients—with total clients under 
support numbering 41.

• 15 of the clients are long-term 
area businesses seeking growth or 
restructuring assistance.

• 12 are early-stage businesses seeking 
growth and capital assistance.

• 14 of the clients are pre-revenue 
businesses seeking assistance with 
their business models and teams, as 
well as locating capital. 

Client Recognition

TAI Prometheus Awards
At the Technology Association of Iowa’s (TAI) 11th Annual Prometheus Awards 
banquet, EDC clients Pear Deck, Higher Learning Technologies, BeraTek, 
SwineTech and Involta were finalists. Involta won the following awards:

• IT Service Provider of the Year

• Bruce Lehrman, CEO of Involta won CEO of the Year 

CBJ’s Fastest Growing Companies Breakfast
At the Corridor Business Journal’s Fastest Growing Companies breakfast in May, 
the following EDC clients were recognized for their growth and contribution to 
the Corridor’s economy:

• #5 Spotix (169% growth)

• #13 Ready Wireless (71.65% growth)

• #14 Clickstop (70.93% growth)

• #18 Involta (51.12% growth) 

 
Client Funding

EDC continues to work closely with our clients to secure funding critical to 
scaling their Iowa-based businesses. So far in 2016, 14 EDC clients have raised 
roughly $12 million in equity, debt and government program funding. 

• Iowa Innovation Program funding ($1.4 million over ten businesses)

• Traditional debt funding (Over $3.5 million across three businesses)

• Equity capital (Over $7 million across four businesses)

Well-Established Area Businesses

Start-ups or Pre-Revenue Businesses
Early-Stage Businesses

Leader Level

EDC thanks our  
stakeholders for their 
generous support of  
Iowa’s entrepreneurs.



Client Case Study

Client: Matt Miller, Founder 
Location: Hiawatha
Product/Service: Rugged tablet computers
Year Founded: 2003
Business Stage when came to EDC: Startup/Pre-Revenue
Current Business Stage: Later Stage
Website: www.ruggedtabletpc.com 

When Hiawatha-based MobileDemand 
reached out to EDC in 2003, it was a 
startup.  Now, MobileDemand, experts in 
rugged Windows® tablets, is a Microsoft 
Authorized Reseller and has announced it 
will offer the very successful Surface Pro 
4 and Surface 3 devices in an enterprise-
ready bundle. The bundle includes an 
expert-applied protective case and 
strengthened glass screen protector. 

MobileDemand unveiled the rugged 
Surface cases, called the xCase, in June at 
COMPUTEX in Taipei, Taiwan. The xCases 
are engineered specifically for the Surface 
Pro 4 and Surface 3 and are proven to 
protect the tablets from accidental damage, 
extending the life of the devices, reducing 
IT upkeep and keeping mobile workforces 
productive throughout entire shifts. 

The cases were engineered by 
MobileDemand as a participant in the 
Microsoft Designed for Surface Program, 
which serves customers by providing third-
party hardware accessories guaranteed to 
work seamlessly with Surface devices.

“The ability for IT professionals to shop 
for Surface tablets, rugged cases and 
screen protectors in one location cannot 
be understated. MobileDemand providing 
complete, enterprise-ready solutions 
means businesses can deploy the devices 
faster,” said Matt Miller, Founder and 
President at MobileDemand. “This equates 
to greater productivity and efficiency in 
the field. No other rugged device company 
can provide a custom, ready-to-go rugged 
Surface bundle.”

When Miller approached EDC back in 2003, 
he had already done his homework and 
drafted a business plan. However, he still 
needed help with a few areas, including 
securing capital. According to Miller, EDC 
helped him get his business plan “into 
focus” and helped him clearly tell his story 
to potential investors. 

Over the next decade, MobileDemand 
continued to scale, adding employees, 
releasing new products and moving to a 

larger facility in Hiawatha 
to meet demand for its 
rugged tablet computers. 
Matt continued to work with 
EDC as needed to help the 
company navigate its growth. 

EDC currently acts as a 
sounding board for Matt and 

the MobileDemand team as they expand. 
“I have been working with the team at the 
EDC since I founded my company, and they 
have been by my side every step of the way. 
It’s been great to rely upon the support 
EDC continues to provide on the strategic 
direction as well as their ability to step in 
and provide hands-on help if needed. The 
EDC has continued to help my company be 
well-positioned for strong growth in the 
years to come,” said Miller.

Champion Level

The EDC has continued to help 
my company be well-positioned 
for strong growth



Partner Level

Client Case Study

Client: Michal Eynon-Lynch, Co-Founder 
Location: Iowa City
Product/Service: EdTech company that uses Google 

documents platform to increase student 
engagement 

Year Founded: 2014
Business Stage when came to EDC: Startup/Pre-

Revenue
Current Business Stage: Early Stage
Website: www.peardeck.com 

Pear Deck was created by former Active Grade co-founders Riley and Michal Eynon-
Lynch and Dan Sweeney. Pear Deck is an early-stage EdTech company that allows 
educators to develop and implement interactive lessons and presentations to more 
effectively engage students and gather real-time input from all students (not just the 
vocal minority). Focused on the Google Classroom for K-12, the technology can be used 
in any environment where participants have a device connected to the internet.

EDC had originally met Michal when 
she and her team were growing 
Active Grade. At that time, they 
chose not to engage with EDC. 
However, when they sold that 
company and began Pear Deck, the 
serial entrepreneurs looked deeper 
into engaging with EDC. 

“I’m not really sure how we can thank you for all the support you’ve given us. There 
was a time when we didn’t think we needed help and you supported us anyway, waiting 
patiently for a time when we’d be more receptive. Thank you for not giving up on us—
we wouldn’t be here without you,” said Michal Eynon-Lynch, Co-Founder. 

The initial market reception for Pear Deck has been very positive. The company has 
also been successful in raising capital and in winning national pitch contests. EDC has 
provided guidance on Pear Deck’s business plan and also engaged to assess the team’s 
capabilities and is currently assisting with developing a marketing plan. 

“EDC has been a value to us in so many ways. I think EDC has touched on almost 
every part of our business. We came to EDC right away when we were developing our 
business plan, we came to them a few months later when we wanted to raise money 
from IEDA. Which we did. We came to EDC again when we needed to condense our 
story down into a three-minute special pitch with which we ended up winning some 
national competitions. This year, as we’re starting to grow, we’re coming back for 
guidance on how to grow our team and how to best work together as well as guidance 
on our marketing plan. EDC differs from other business resources in the scope of their 
expertise and how dedicated they are to each company that they’re helping,” said 
Eynon-Lynch.

EDC has been a value to us in 
so many ways. I think EDC has 
touched on almost every part of 
our business



Collaborator Level

On May 2, EDC held its first-ever Annual Meeting luncheon at the Hotel at Kirkwood 
Center. The event drew a crowd of nearly 330 attendees that included EDC stakeholders 
and entrepreneur clients who gathered to celebrate the impact entrepreneurial 
businesses have had on the region’s economy. 

Attendees heard from nine entrepreneur clients with whom EDC has worked over the 
organization’s nearly 13-year history.  The entrepreneurs spoke about their Iowa-based 
businesses and the challenges and successes they have experienced along their growth 
paths.

“How you see your business in the beginning is rarely how it ends up looking,” said 
Mary Beth Guillaume, Founder of Lionne Designs. “Over the last 13 years with Lionne, 
I rebranded three times, changed my distribution model twice, have been on the verge 
of extinction more times than I care to admit, and learned that I still have a lot to learn. 
That’s where the EDC came in.”

The EDC client entrepreneurs featured at the luncheon included:

• Drew Bossen, Co-Founder, Atlas Ergonomics

• Freda Sojka, Founder, Simply Soothing

• Matt Miller, Founder, MobileDemand

• Mary Beth Guillaume, Founder, Lionne Designs

•  Dennis Henderson, Co-Founder, Ready Wireless

•  John Slump, Co-Founder, Corvida Medical

•  Bruce Lehrman, Co-Founder, Involta

•  Michal Eynon-Lynch, Co-Founder, Pear Deck 

•  Tom Pientok, CEO, Apache, Inc. 
 
EDC President & CEO, Curt Nelson, spoke briefly on the organization’s process and 
evolution. “Since our founding in 2003, EDC has grown and enhanced its product 
offering to optimally serve its customers, Iowa’s entrepreneurs, as well as our 
stakeholders. The success created is really the result of executing well on a valid 
market need. That applies to both our organization and all of the entrepreneurs that 
we support.” For EDC clients, “There is no graduating – but rather accelerating and the 
ability to rely on the team at EDC every step of the way.”

Nelson continued, “The work and time the team at EDC invests in Iowa companies is 
gratifying because the impact can be seen in the improved business performance as 
well as in the eyes of the entrepreneurs themselves. And based upon the metrics on 
which programs of our type are measured, EDC ranks among the best in the country.”

EDC’s Annual Meeting



Member Level

Get more information and register at 
http://innovationexpo2016.eventbrite.com

Follow us on Twitter (InnoEXPOIA) and Facebook (InnoEXPOIA)  
for event updates. 

Join us Wednesday, October 26th at the DoubleTree by Hilton 
Cedar Rapids Convention Complex. Meet dozens of entrepreneurs. 

Connect with potential partners who are committed to growing 
Iowa businesses.

The EXPO is coming back to Cedar Rapids!

Mary Quass  
Dick Schwab
Scott Olson

Bob Hackney

Iowa City

Feiereisen, Inc.
5203 16th Avenue S.W.  • Cedar Rapids, IA 52404

Phone: (319) 396-1987 • (800) 753-1719 • Fax: (319) 396-2628
www.feiereisen.com

Three Locations:
Cedar Rapids • Des Moines • Kansas City

Connect. Learn. Celebrate.

SM


	City Administrator Memo	
	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Roseberry Stop 
	Alphagraphics Site Plan
	Shive-Hattery Service Agreement
	SRF Proceedings 
	Water System Improvements
	Smaller Lot, Single Family Zoning Ordinance 
	Additional Information 



